
 
 

 

 

 
SCOTTISH BORDERS 
  LICENSING BOARD 

FRIDAY, 24TH NOVEMBER, 2023 
 

 
A MEETING of the SCOTTISH BORDERS  LICENSING BOARD will be held in the COUNCIL 

CHAMBER, COUNCIL HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS on FRIDAY, 24 

NOVEMBER 2023 at 10.00 am.  This will be a blended meeting in accordance with the Licensing 

(Scotland) Act 2005 and can be accessed remotely via Microsoft Teams. 

All Attendees, including members of the public, should note that the public business in this 

meeting will be livestreamed and video recorded and that recording will be available 

thereafter for public view for 180 days . 

 
N. McKinlay  
Director of Corporate Governance 
 
14 November 2023 
 
 

BUSINESS 
  

1.  Apologies for Absence  
  

2.  Order of Business  
  

3.  Declarations of Interest  
  

4.  
 

Minute (Pages 5 - 10) 
Minute of Meeting of 22 September 2023 for approval.  (Copy attached.) 
  

5.  
 

Licences dealt with under Delegated Powers (Pages 11 - 20) 
(Copy attached.) 
  

6.  Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005:  
  

 (a)   
  

Section 20: Application for Grant / Provisional Grant of Premises Licence.  
(Pages 21 - 32) 
Consider the following applications for Grant / Provisional Grant of Premises Licence 
(applicants cited to attend.)  (Copies attached). 
  
Partnership of G Allicate &                                      Bella Sicily 

C Pinto                                                        12 Canongate 
                                                                                    Jedburgh 
                                                                                    TD8 6AJ 
                                                                                    (Provisional) 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

                                                                                     

        Proposed business activity - The premises is a ground floor terraced premises in 
Jedburgh town centre comprising of lower and upper seating areas, kitchen, 
toilet facilities and storage areas. Retail premises on either side with residential 
premises above. The proposal being to sell alcohol to compliment the 
restaurant facility, with alcohol served generally, but not exclusively as an 
accompaniment to food, as well as being offered as an Off Sale to accompany 
takeaway and delivery food orders.  

  
        Licensed hours applied for: 
        ON SALE                                                         OFF SALE 
        Mon to Sun - 11.00am to 12.00 midnight        Mon to Sun - 11.00am to 10.00am 
        Representations received: 

Police Scotland - none. 
Licensing Standards Enforcement Officer - none. 
Health - none. 
Other - none. 

  
    
 (b)   
  

Section 20:  Application for Grant / Provisional Grant of Premises Licence.  
(Pages 33 - 44) 
Consider the following applications for Grant / Provisional Grant of Premises Licence 
(applicants cited to attend.)  (Copies attached). 
  
     Rafal Ziemba                                                       Scrummy & Scrumpy 

                                                                     29 High Street 
                                                                                    Hawick 
                                                                                    TD9 9BU 
                                                                                    (Provisional) 
                                                                                     

        Proposed business activity - The premise is a small ground floor retail unit situated 
in Hawick Town Centre. The premise consists of a main shop area and backroom 
storage. The proposal being to sell alcohol an Off-Sales basis, along with food 
produce from around the UK and home baked cakes. 

        Licensed hours applied for: 
ON SALE                                                         OFF SALE 
 N/A                                                                   Mon to Sun - 10.00am to 10.00am 

        Representations received: 
Police Scotland - none. 
Licensing Standards Enforcement Officer - none. 
Health - none. 
Other - none. 

  
   

7.  
 

Festive Season Extended Hours Policy (Pages 45 - 46) 
Consider festive season extended hours policy to be granted under delegated powers. 
(Copy note attached.)  

8.  
 

Draft Licensing Board Policy Statement 2023 to 2028 - Update (Pages 47 - 100) 
Consider content of Briefing Note and update from the Managing Solicitor (Property & 
Licensing) on responses received to statutory consultation and review for final approval of 
the 2023-28 Licensing Board Policy Statement :- 
 

(a) Briefing Note by Depute Clerk. 
(b) Draft Policy Statement 2023-28. 
(c) Licensing Forum response to consultation. 
(d) ADP response to consultation 



 
 
 

(e) Jethart Callant’s Festival Committee response to consultation. 
 
 
(Copies attached.)  

9.  Any other items previously circulated  
  

10.  Any other items which the Convener decides are Urgent  
  

 
 
NOTE 

 Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any item 
of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to 
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the Minute 
of the meeting. 
 
 
Membership of Committee:- Councillors M. Douglas (Convener), J. Cox, P. Brown, D. Parker, 
J. PatonDay, N. Richards, F. Sinclair, E. Small and T. Weatherston 
 
 
Please direct any enquiries to Fiona Henderson Tele:  01835 826502 
E-mail: fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
LICENSING BOARD 

 
 
 MINUTE of Meeting of the SCOTTISH 

BORDERS  LICENSING BOARD held via 
Microsoft Teams on 22 September 2023 at 
10.00 am 

    
 

Present: - 
 
 
Apologies: 

Councillors M. Douglas (Convener), J. Cox, J. PatonDay, D. Parker, E. Small, 
F. Sinclair. 
 
Councillor P. Brown, N. Richards, T. Weatherston. 
 

In Attendance: - Managing Solicitor (Property and Licensing), Licensing Standards and 
Enforcement Officer (M. Wynne), Licensing Officers – (S. Lackenby and T. 
Thomson), Sergeant D. Pearey (Police Scotland), Democratic Services 
Officer (F. Henderson). 
 

 
 

 
1.0 MINUTE  
 There had been circulated copies of the Minute of the Meeting held on 26 May 2023.   
 

DECISION 
APPROVED the minute for signature by the Convener. 
 

2.0 LICENSES ISSUED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS 
For Members’ information there had been circulated copies of lists of licences dealt with 
under delegated powers for the periods 13 February 2023 – 5 September 2023. 

DECISION 
NOTED. 
 
LICENSING (SCOTLAND) ACT 2005 

3.0 Section 20: Application for Grant/Provisional Grant of Premises Licence  
3.1 Consider the following application for Grant of Premises Licence. 

  
         Cove Communities Venture 2                        The Roxburgh 
         Springwood Opco Ltd                                     Springwood Riverside Park 
                                                                                    Springwood Estate 
                                                                                    Kelso TD5 8LS 
                                                                                    (Provisional) 
         
Proposed business activity - The premises situated on the Springwood Riverside 
Village/Caravan Park, had been refurbished to create a new community facility for the site 
and the adjacent resident’s village. The facility consisted of a café/bar, reception area, office, 
laundry, lounge areas, TV room, toilet facilities, as well as a large external seating area.  The 
proposal being to sell alcohol on an On and Off-Sale basis. 
Licensed hours applied for: 

ON SALE                                                         OFF-SALE 
Mon to Sun 11.00am – 11.00pm                     Mon to Sun 10.00am – 10.00pm 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



        Representations received: 
Police Scotland - none. 
Licensing Standards Enforcement Officer - none. 
Health - none. 
Other - none. 
 
There had been circulated copies of an application for the grant of a Premises Licence.  Mr 
Wynne, Licensing Standards and Enforcement Officer advised that the application was for the   
recently refurbished Community area within the site.  The application which was for off and on 
sales was within policy and no objections had been received.  Police Scotland had no 
objections. 
 
The Convener welcomed, Mr Norton, Operations Director to the meeting via Teams.  Mr 
Norton explained that the offer, which would be low key was primarily for Residents and would 
also be available to locals to include an occasional singer when hosting Tapas evenings, there 
would not be any big shows or stag and hen parties.  Police Scotland had no objections.   
 
DECISION  
AGREED TO Grant  
 

3.2 Section 29:  Application for Variation of Premises Licence  
Consider application for Variation of Premises Licence. 
        
        Jordan MacFarlane                                        Old Bakehouse 
        Glenisla                                                           Main Street 
        Elsrickle                                                           WEST LINTON 
        Biggar, ML12 6QZ                                          EH46 7EA 
                                                                       
Amendments to the Operating and Layout Plan to include the following:- 
a change to the core On and Off-Sale Hours – 
Current On Sale Hours                             Proposed On Sale Hours 

   12.00pm – 12.00 Midnight Mon to Sun    11.00am – 12 midnight Sun to Thurs 
                                                                           11.00am – 1.00am Fri & Sat 
Current Off-Sale Hours                                               Proposed Off-Sale Hours 
NONE 10.00am – 10.00pm Mon to Sun 

· amend the seasonal variation at question 4 to read ‘Christmas Eve, Christmas 
Day, Boxing Day, New Year’s Eve and New Year’s Day open until 1.00am or 
within any other Licensing Board Policy. 

·  
· the addition to the permitted activities referred to in question 5 (columns 2, 3 & 4) 

of the Operating Plan, to include conference facilities; Club or Group meetings; 
films; indoor/outdoor sports and televised sport both within and outwith core hours; 

·          the addition to the permitted activities referred to in question 5 (column 4) of the 
Operating Plan, to include receptions (including weddings, funerals, birthdays, 
retirements etc); and recorded music, outwith core hours; 

 
·          the addition to the permitted activities referred to in question 5 (columns 2 & 3)   of  
           the Operating Plan, to include Gaming within core hours; 

Page 6



· the addition of the terms/explanation at question 5(e) of the Operating Plan relating 
to the list of permitted activities (as to “YES” in column 4)  
 

· the addition of the terms/explanation at question 5 (f) of the Operating Plan relating 
to activities other than those stated in question 5(a) to (e); 

 
· Change Statement of Children and Young Persons access to read:- 

“Children and Young Persons will be allowed access unsupervised to the font area 
of the premises being used as a takeaway delicatessen.  Children will be allowed 
access to the restaurant areas when accompanied by an adult for the purpose of a 
meal or partaking of refreshments.  Young Persons for the same reason but 
unaccompanied” 
 

·         The bar counter to be moved from the front area of premises to the rear extended 
dining area (Garden Room).  An off-sale display of mainly craft spirits/beers will be 
situated in front area (delicatessen) of premises.  Front area of premises will have 
a delicatessen counter for retail of takeaway foods. 

         
Representations received: 
Police Scotland - none 
Licensing Standards Officer - none 
Health - none 
Other – none 

 
There had been circulated copies of an application for the variation of Premises Licence.  Mr 
Wynne, Licensing Standards and Enforcement Officer advised that the application was for the 
purpose of bringing the operating plan up to date.  The alterations were within policy and no 
objections had been received.  Police Scotland had no objections. 
 
The Convener welcomed, Mr McFarlane to the meeting who explained that since acquiring the 
premises small alterations had been made to the layout, with the inclusion of a deli counter for  
selling local produce.   
 
DECISION  
AGREED TO GRANT. 
 

4.0 CHIEF CONSTABLES ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 
4.1 There had been circulated copies of the Chief Constable – Police Service of Scotland report 

to the Licensing Board for the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 in accordance with Section 
12(A) Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005.  The report summarised the work undertaken throughout 
this period.  The Scottish Borders Licensing Board area was policed by J Division and Chief 
Superintendent Catriona Paton was the Local Police Commander who had responsibility for 
all day-to-day policing functions.  The Local Area Commander Chief Inspector Vincent Fisher 
was based at Galashiels and was responsible for performance management, community 
engagement, partnership working and the daily management of local personnel. Chief 
Inspector Fisher was supported by Inspector Robbie Noble who was also based at Galashiels. 
The Scottish Borders Licensing Boards were predominantly attended by PC Scott Dishington.  
The report outlined the local policing priorities, description of Board area and information on 
the operation of the Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005.  In the Scottish Borders, there were 206 
recorded incidents in licensed premises between 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023, showing a 
decrease from previous years of 13%.   
 

Page 7



There were 436 premises in Scottish Borders licensed to sell alcohol, which was a reduction 
of 15 since the previous reporting year.  There was an additional demand on Police 
resourcing in the Scottish Borders area especially during the summer months due to 
common ridings and rugby 7’s tournaments.  There were 2 active premises trading until 3 a.m. and 
1 premise trading until 2 am at the weekend, with annual occasional extensions for some Common 
Ridings and Town Balls.  Police Scotland carried out 696 recorded inspections of licensed 
premises in the Borders during the reporting year.  On Friday and Saturday evenings police 
officers are deployed on foot where other incidents permit, to aid with dispersal of licensed 
premises and reduce antisocial behaviour and violence related incidents between the hours 
of 2200-0400. The proactive use of exclusion orders and antisocial behaviour legislation 
continued to contribute to reducing repeat offending in licensed premises. The misuse of 
alcohol was regularly cited as a contributory factor in relation to crimes of violence, domestic 
abuse, disorder and antisocial behaviour.   The report also summarised the proposed activity 
for the year ahead which included the licensing officer to continue to work alongside partner 
agencies and LSO’s to provide pertinent advice and support to licence holders and their 
staff, Local Community Police Officers to undertake a dedicated night-time economy policing 
plan focussing on alcohol-related incidents, anti-social behaviour, violence, disorder and 
drugs misuse, and to engage with licensees to deliver any national campaigns including 
providing ‘bystander’ training to licence premise staff with a view to education to protect 
vulnerable persons within licensed premises and help tackle sexual violence connected to 
alcohol consumption. 
 
DECISION 
NOTED the report. 
 

5.0 SCOTTISH BORDERS ALCOHOL PROFILE  
5.1 There had been circulated copies of the Alcohol Profile 2023, which aimed to support the 

Scottish Borders Licensing Board by providing evidence to inform development of Licensing 
Policy Statement and support decision making.  Many different sources of evidence can be 
used to inform licensing policy and practice including experience and knowledge of Licensing 
Board Members, views and experience of those resident within the Board area, through the 
Community Insights into Alcohol Impact and Licensing in Scottish Borders Survey held in July 
2023.    
 

5.2 In 2021/22 there were 456 licensed premises compared with 450 the previous year, after an 
ever-increasing trend of occasional licenses being granted between 2017 – 2020, the number 
reduced over 2020 – 22 as a result of COVID-19 pandemic.  The most recent local data 
however showed that the number of occasional licenses in 2022/23 had returned to an even 
higher level with an increase to 1455, a 17% increase. 

 
5.3 In terms of the Scottish Borders, there were 456 places to buy alcohol of which 343 were on-

sales premises and 113 were off-sales.  The Alcohol profile highlighted that in Scottish Borders 
24% of people drink above the Chief Medical Officer’s’ low-risk guidelines which included 18% 
of Women and 32% were men compared to 24% of people in Scotland who drink above the 
guidelines.  Parental drinking was identified as a concern for 12% of children on the child 
protection register in Scottish Borders.  It was reported that 53% of S2 and S4 students in 
Scottish Borders drink alcohol and 27% of S2 and S4 students in Scottish Borders drink alcohol 
at least once per month.  There were 405 alcohol-related hospital admissions in Scottish 
Borders in 2021/22, which was lower than for Scotland as a whole and 21 deaths because of 
alcohol from conditions solely caused by alcohol.  Every Year, alcohol costs Scottish Borders 
£30.5m or £270 per person.     
 

Page 8



5.4 Violence recording indicated an ‘Alcohol’ marker as a clearly defined aggravator to indicate 
where the presence of alcohol was deemed a factor in the act of violence.  Of the 979 recorded 
crimes of Violence for 20-21, 239 had the alcohol marker attached to the crime report, of those, 
134 were in residential locations and 105 were in a public space.  Galashiels, Hawick, Kelso, 
Selkirk and Peebles were the areas most frequently affected by public space violence where 
alcohol was a factor with most incidents taken place in the late evening/early morning across 
the weekend. 

 
 DECISION  
 NOTED.  

 
PRIVATE BUSINESS 

 DECISION 
 AGREED under Section 50A(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to 

exclude the public from the meeting during consideration of the business detailed in 
the Appendix to this Minute on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 14 of Part I of Schedule 7A to the Act. 

 
Summary of Private Business 

 
 

6.0 MINUTE  
 The Board considered the Private Minute of the Meeting held on 26 May 2023. 

 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 10.36 a.m. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



NAME OF APPLICANT

LICENCE 

TYPE LICENCE DETAILS VENUE

Lodge St James BURA No.424 OCCLIC Occasional Licence - Hen Party

Saturday 21 October 2023   6.00pm - 12.00midnight

8 Union Street, Hawick

Portzim Limited OCCLIC Occasional Licence - additional/extended area for Restaurant Facilities, Entertainment and Functions

Friday 13 October 2023 to Thursday 26 October 2023 (Sundays to Thursdays 12:00 noon - 12midnight; 

Fridays and Saturdays 12.00noon - 1.00am)

Lilliardsedge Holiday Park, Jedburgh

Portzim Limited OCCLIC Occasional Licence - additional/extended area for Restaurant Facilities, Entertainment and Functions

Friday 27 October 2023 to Thursday 9 November 2023 (Sundays to Thursdays 12:00 noon - 

12midnight; Fridays and Saturdays 12.00noon - 1.00am)

Lilliardsedge Holiday Park, Jedburgh

Portzim Limited OCCLIC Occasional Licence - additional/extended area for Restaurant Facilities, Entertainment and Functions

Friday 10 November 2023 to Thursday 23 November 2023 (Sundays to Thursdays 12.00noon - 12 

midnight; Fridays and Saturdays 12.00noon - 1.00am)

Lilliardsedge Holiday Park, Jedburgh

Portzim Limited OCCLIC Occasional Licence - additional/extended area for Restaurant Facilities, Entertainment and Functions

Friday 24 November 2023 to Thursday 7 December 2023 (Sundays to Thursdays 12.00noon - 12 

midnight; Fridays and Saturdays 12.00noon - 1.00am)

Lilliardsedge Holiday Park, Jedburgh

Portzim Limited OCCLIC Occasional Licence - additional/extended area for Restaurant Facilities, Entertainment and Functions

Friday 8 December 2023 to Thursday 21 December 2023 (Sundays to Thursdays 12.00noon - 12 

midnight; Fridays and Saturdays 12.00noon - 1.00am)

Lilliardsedge Holiday Park, Jedburgh

Portzim Limited OCCLIC Occasional Licence - additional/extended area for Restaurant Facilities, Entertainment and Functions

Friday 22 December 2023 to Thursday 4 January 2024 (Sundays to Thursdays 12.00noon - 12 

midnight; Fridays and Saturdays 12.00noon - 1.00am)

Lilliardsedge Holiday Park, Jedburgh

Square One (Hawick) Limited OCCLIC Occasional Licence - Music Night

Saturday, 21 October 2023 - 7.00pm - 1.00am

Town Hall, Hawick

The Border Club OCCLIC Occasional Licence - Charity Music Event

Saturday 21 October 2023 - 6.00pm - 12.00midnight

Border Club, Hawick

The Border Club OCCLIC Occasional Licence - Charity Music Event

Saturday 25 November 2023 - 6.00pm - 12.00midnight

Border Club, Hawick

The Border Club OCCLIC Occasional Licence - Charity Music Event

Saturday 16 December 2023 - 6.00pm - 12.00midnight

Border Club, Hawick

SCOTTISH BORDERS LICENSING BOARD
LICENCES ISSUED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

9 October 2023 - 13 November 2023

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 5



The Border Club OCCLIC Occasional Licence - Charity Music Event

Monday 1 January 2024 - 6.00pm - 1.00am

Border Club, Hawick

Verdant Leisure 2 Limited OCCLIC Occasional Licence - Leisure Facility and Entertainment Complex with Bar and Restaurant

Friday 15 September to Thursday 28 September 2023  Sunday to Wednesday 11.00am - 

12.00midnight; Thursday to Saturday 11.00am - 1.00am

Coldingham Bay Leisure Park, Coldingham

Verdant Leisure 2 Limited OCCLIC Occasional Licence - Leisure Facility and Entertainment Complex with Bar and Restaurant

Friday 29 September to Thursday 12 October 2023  Sunday to Wednesday 11.00am - 12.00midnight; 

Thursday to Saturday 11.00am - 1.00am

Coldingham Bay Leisure Park, Coldingham

Verdant Leisure 2 Limited OCCLIC Occasional Licence - Leisure Facility and Entertainment Complex with Bar and Restaurant

Friday 13 October to Thursday 26 October 2023  Sunday to Wednesday 11.00am - 12.00midnight; 

Thursday to Saturday 11.00am - 1.00am

Coldingham Bay Leisure Park, Coldingham

Verdant Leisure 2 Limited OCCLIC Occasional Licence - Leisure Facility and Entertainment Complex with Bar and Restaurant

Friday 27 October to Thursday 09 November 2023  Sunday to Wednesday 11.00am - 12.00midnight; 

Thursday to Saturday 11.00am - 1.00am

Coldingham Bay Leisure Park, Coldingham

Verdant Leisure 2 Limited OCCLIC Occasional Licence - Leisure Facility and Entertainment Complex with Bar and Restaurant

Friday 10 November 2023 to Thursday 23 November 2023  Sunday to Wednesday 11.00am - 

12.00midnight; Thursday to Saturday 11.00am - 1.00am

Coldingham Bay Leisure Park, Coldingham

Verdant Leisure 2 Limited OCCLIC Occasional Licence - Leisure Facility and Entertainment Complex with Bar and Restaurant

Friday 24 November 2023 to Thursday 7 December 2023  Sunday to Wednesday 11.00am - 

12.00midnight; Thursday to Saturday 11.00am - 1.00am

Coldingham Bay Leisure Park, Coldingham

Verdant Leisure 2 Limited OCCLIC Occasional Licence - Leisure Facility and Entertainment Complex with Bar and Restaurant

Friday 8 December 2023 to Thursday 21 December 2023  Sunday to Wednesday 11.00am - 

12.00midnight; Thursday to Saturday 11.00am - 1.00am

Coldingham Bay Leisure Park, Coldingham

Verdant Leisure 2 Limited OCCLIC Occasional Licence - Leisure Facility and Entertainment Complex with Bar and Restaurant

Friday 22 December 2023 to Thursday 4 January 2024  Sunday to Wednesday 11.00am - 

12.00midnight; Thursday to Saturday 11.00am - 1.00am

Coldingham Bay Leisure Park, Coldingham

West Linton Bowling Club OCCLIC Occasional Licence - Social Evening with Live Band - West Linton Bowling Club

Saturday 14 October 2023   7.00pm - 12.00midnight

Bowling Club, West Linton

West Linton Bowling Club OCCLIC Occasional Licence - Fundraiser for 'Cargivers Connected' - West Linton Bowling Club

Saturday 28 October 2023   7.00pm - 12.00midnight

Bowling Club, West Linton

Allan Walker OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Christmas Market - Sale of Artisan Spirits made by Selkirk Distillers

Saturday 25 November 2023 - 2.00pm - 5.00pm

Volunteer Hall, Galashiels

Allan Walker OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Sale of Artisan Spirits made by Selkirk Distillers

Saturday 16 December 2023 - 10.00am - 8.00pm

9 High Street, Eyemouth

Allan Walker OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Charity Fashion Show

Friday 10 November 2023  - 6.00pm - 10.00pm

Victoria Halls, Selkirk

Allan Walker OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Sale of Artisan Spirits made by Selkirk Distillers

Saturday 4 November 2023 - 10.00am - 1.00pm

Market Stall, Selkirk

Andrew Robertson OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Cafe/Restaurant on Caravan Park

Friday 20 October 2023 - Thursday 2 November 2023   11.00am - 11.00pm

Café Bistro, Springwood Estate, Springwood 

Park, Kelso

Andrew Robertson OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Cafe/Restaurant on Caravan Park

Friday 3 November 2023 - Thursday 16 November 2023   11.00am - 11.00pm

Café Bistro, Springwood Estate, Springwood 

Park, Kelso

P
age 12



Andrew Telfer OCCPLH Occasional Licence - 30th Birthday Party

Saturday, 21st October 2023   6.00pm - 1.00am

Laidlaw Memorial Hall, Bonchester Bridge

Angus MacPherson OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Gerry Cinnamon Tribute Act and Disco

Friday, 20th October 2023 - 6.00pm - 1.00am

Memorial Hall, Innerleithen

Ben Glasgow OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Sale of Vodka and Gin Products

Saturday 30 November 2023   5.00pm - 9.00pm

Primary School, West Linton

Ben Glasgow OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Sale of Vodka and Gin Products

Saturday 2 December 2023   10.00am - 3.00pm

Eastgate, Peebles

Ben Glasgow OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Sale of Vodka and Gin Products

Saturday 11 November 2023   10.00am - 3.00pm

Eastgate, Peebles

Ben Glasgow OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Sale of Vodka and Gin Products

Saturday 2 December 2023   10.00am - 12.30pm

Primary School, West Linton

Ben Glasgow OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Sale of Vodka and Gin Products

Saturday 9 December 2023   10.00am - 3.00pm

Eastgate, Peebles

Ben Glasgow OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Sale of Vodka and Gin Products

Saturday 16 December 2023   10.00am - 3.00pm

Eastgate, Peebles

Ben Glasgow OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Sale of Vodka and Gin Products

Saturday 4 November 2023   10.00am - 12.30pm

Primary School, West Linton

Ben Glasgow OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Sale of Vodka and Gin Products

Saturday 4 November 2023   10.00am - 3.00pm

Eastgate, Peebles

Ben Glasgow OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Sale of Vodka and Gin Products

Saturday 18 November 2023   10.00am - 3.00pm

Eastgate, Peebles

Blair Riddell OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Wedding - Neidpath Castle

Saturday 28 October 2023   12.00noon - 12.00midnight

Neidpath Castle, Peebles

Brian Graham OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Fundraiser for the Vale of Leithen Football Club

Sunday 15 October 2023  12.00noon - 6.00pm

Memorial Hall, Innerleithen

Carol Shanley OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Wedding

Saturday 4 November 2023   12.00noon - 11.00pm

Branxholme Castle, Hawick

Carol Shanley OCCPLH Occasional Licence -  Retirement Dinner with Live Band

Sunday 15 October 2023 - 12.00noon - 11.00pm

Branxholme Castle, Hawick

Catherine Maxwell Stuart OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Wedding Reception

Tuesday 31 October 2023   9.00pm - 12.00midnight

Traquair House, Innerleithen

Christopher Harrison OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Craft Fair - Newcastleton Village Hall

Thursday 19, Friday 20, Saturday 21 and Sunday 22 October 2023 - 10.00am - 5.00pm

Village Hall, Newcastleton

Christopher Lightfoot OCCPLH Occcasional Licence - National Hunt Horse Racing Meeting

Saturday 28 October 2023 - 10.00am - 11.00pm

Racecourse, Kelso

Christopher Lightfoot OCCPLH Occasional Licence - National Hunt Horse Racing Meeting

Saturday 11 November 2023 - 10.00am - 11.00pm

Racecourse, Kelso

Ewa Przemyska OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Alcohol displayed in unit for off sale only

Tuesday 17 October 2023 - Monday 30 October 2023  10.00am - 10.00pm

Scrummy And Scrumpy, Hawick

Ewa Przemyska OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Alcohol displayed in unit for off sale only

Tuesday 31 October 2023 - Monday 13 November 2023  10.00am - 10.00pm

Scrummy And Scrumpy, Hawick

P
age 13



Ewa Przemyska OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Alcohol displayed in unit for off sale only

Tuesday 14 November 2023 - Monday 27 November 2023  10.00am - 10.00pm

Scrummy And Scrumpy, Hawick

Fabiano Furlan OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Cafe/Bistro - Creative Borders

Monday 13 November 2023 - Sunday 26 November 2023  11.00am to 9.00pm

Creative Borders, Galashiels

Fabiano Furlan OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Cafe/Bistro - Creative Borders

Monday 27 November 2023 - Sunday 10 December 2023  11.00am to 9.00pm

Creative Borders, Galashiels

Fabiano Furlan OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Cafe/Bistro - Creative Borders

Monday 11 December 2023 - Sunday 24 December 2023  11.00am to 9.00pm

Creative Borders, Galashiels

Fabiano Furlan OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Cafe/Bistro - Creative Borders

Monday 25 December 2023 - Sunday 7 January 2024  11.00am to 9.00pm

Creative Borders, Galashiels

Fabiano Furlan OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Cafe/Bistro - Creative Borders

Monday 8 January 2024 - Sunday 21 January 2024  11.00am to 9.00pm

Creative Borders, Galashiels

Fraser Wright OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Tapas Days

Friday 20 October 2023 and Saturday 21 October 2023    12.00noon - 12.00midnight

Maxwells, Duns

Helen Corcoran OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Community Get Together with Bar - Stow Station House

Friday 3 November 2023   6.00pm - 10.00pm

Stow Station House, Stow

Helen Corcoran OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Community Get Together with Bar - Stow Station House

Friday 10 November 2023   6.00pm - 10.00pm

Stow Station House, Stow

Helen Corcoran OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Community Get Together with Bar - Stow Station House

Saturday 11 November 2023   6.00pm - 10.00pm

Stow Station House, Stow

Helen Corcoran OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Community Drinks Night - Stow Station House

Thursday 26 October 2023   6.00pm - 10.00pm

Stow Station House, Stow

Helen Corcoran OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Community Get Together with Bar - Stow Station House

Friday 27 October 2023   6.00pm - 10.00pm

Stow Station House, Stow

Helen Corcoran OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Local Detective Novel Writer Talk - Halloween Theme

Tuesday 31 October 2023   6.00pm - 10.00pm

Stow Station House, Stow

Helen Corcoran OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Film Show and Q & A

Thursday 2 November 2023   6.00pm - 10.00pm

Stow Station House, Stow

Helen Corcoran OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Charity Afternoon Tea - Stow Station House

Sunday 22 October 2023   1.00pm - 5.00pm

Stow Station House, Stow

Helen Corcoran OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Bottle Bar - Stow Station House

Friday 20 October 2023   6.00pm - 10.00pm

Stow Station House, Stow

James Bolland OCCPLH Occasional Licence - All Seated Bingo Event

Friday 20 October 2023    6.00pm - 12.00midnight

Volunteer Hall, Galashiels

James Bolland OCCPLH Occasional Licence - All Seated Comedy Event

Friday 27 October 2023    6.30pm - 10.30pm

Volunteer Hall, Galashiels

James Bolland OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Live Music and Dance Event

Saturday 4 November 2023    6.30pm - 10.30pm

Corn Exchange, Melrose

James Bolland OCCPLH Occasional Licence - All Seated Comedy Event

Friday 10 November 2023    6.30pm - 10.30pm

Volunteer Hall, Galashiels

James Bolland OCCPLH Occasional Licence - All Seated Classical Music Event

Monday 13 November 2023    7.00pm - 10.30pm

Victoria Halls, Selkirk

P
age 14



James Bolland OCCPLH Occasional Licence - All Seated Comedy Event

Saturday 18 November 2023    6.30pm - 10.30pm

Town Hall, Hawick

James Bolland OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Private Birthday Party

Saturday 2 December 2023    7.00pm - 12.00midnight

Corn Exchange, Melrose

Jeremy Fraser OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Bavarian Beer Festival

Saturday 28 October 2023   1.00pm - 11.45pm

Town Hall, Stow

Jim McDevitt OCCPLH Occasional Licence -  Community Cinema

Friday 3 November 2023  7.00pm - 11.00pm

Volunteer Hall, Duns

Jim McDevitt OCCPLH Occasional Licence -  Performances of One Man Two Guvnors

Wednesday 8 November 2023 - Saturday 11  November 2023  6.30pm - 11.00pm

Volunteer Hall, Duns

Jim McDevitt OCCPLH Occasional Licence -  A Heart for Duns AGM, Public Meeting

Monday 13  November 2023  6.00pm - 9.00pm

Volunteer Hall, Duns

Jim McDevitt OCCPLH Occasional Licence -  Berwickshire Civic Society AGM

Wednesday 15  November 2023   6.30pm - 9.30pm

Volunteer Hall, Duns

Jim McDevitt OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Berwickshire Hunt Auction - Fundraising Event

Friday 17  November 2023   6.00pm - 11.00pm

Volunteer Hall, Duns

Jim McDevitt OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Duns and District Amateur Operatic Society Show - The Sword in the Stone

Wednesday 29 November 2023 - Saturday 2 December 2023   

Wednesday - Friday    6.00pm - 11.00pm and Saturday   2.00pm - 7.00pm

Volunteer Hall, Duns

Joyce Adamson OCCPLH Occasional Licence - 60th Birthday Party

Saturday 28th October 2023 - 7.00pm - 12.midnight

War Memorial Hall, Oxton

Kate Moss-Jones OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Live Music - Just Radiohead

Saturday 11 November 2023 - 7.00pm - 11.00pm

Mac Arts, Galashiels

Kate Moss-Jones OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Live Music - Kiarine Pollart

Wednesday 8 November 2023 and Thursday 9 November 2023 - 7.00pm - 11.00pm

Mac Arts, Galashiels

Kate Moss-Jones OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Live Music - Nati

Thursday 16 November 2023 - 7.00pm - 11.00pm

Mac Arts, Galashiels

Kate Moss-Jones OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Live Music - Malka + Carla J Easton

Friday 17 November 2023 - 7.00pm - 11.00pm

Mac Arts, Galashiels

Kate Moss-Jones OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Live Music - Callum Easter + The Roulettes

Saturday 18 November 2023 - 7.00pm - 11.00pm

Mac Arts, Galashiels

Kate Moss-Jones OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Private Hire - Works + Awards Ceremony

Wednesday 22 November 2023 - 6.30pm - 11.00pm

Mac Arts, Galashiels

Kate Moss-Jones OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Live Music - Prog-Rocker Focus

Thursday 23 November 2023 - 7.00pm - 11.00pm

Mac Arts, Galashiels

Kate Moss-Jones OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Live Music - Young Bands Showcase (Harris Trust)

Friday 24 November 2023 - 7.00pm - 11.00pm

Mac Arts, Galashiels

Kate Moss-Jones OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Live SKA from Poekple

Saturday 25 November 2023 - 7.00pm - 11.00pm

Mac Arts, Galashiels

Kate Moss-Jones OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Comedy Show

Sunday 26 November 2023 - 1.30pm - 11.00pm

Mac Arts, Galashiels

P
age 15



Kate Moss-Jones OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Live Comedy Show

Thursday 30 November 2023 - 6.30pm - 11.00pm

Mac Arts, Galashiels

Kate Moss-Jones OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Live Music - Pygmy Twylyte & Tsahe

Saturday 4 November 2023 - 7.00pm - 11.00pm

Mac Arts, Galashiels

Kate Moss-Jones OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Live Music - Vintage RNR (The Vintage Explosion)

Sunday 5 November 2023 - 1.30pm - 11.00pm

Mac Arts, Galashiels

Keiran Scott OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Wedding with Live Band

Saturday, 11th November 2023   12.00noon - 12.00midnight

Neidpath Castle, Peebles

Keiran Scott OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Wedding with Live Band

Saturday 21 October 2023   6.00pm - 12.00midnight

Neidpath Castle, Peebles

Kerry-Louise McElrath OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Ticketed event with Live Music

Saturday 11 November 2023 - 6.00pm - 12.00midnight

St Mary And St Davids Church Hall, Hawick

Leslie Mallin OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Joint 50th and 21st Birthday Party

Saturday 21 October 2023   6.30pm - 1.00am

Community Centre, Langlee, Galashiels

Michael Mackenzie OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Wedding - Neidpath Castle

Wednesday 18 October 2023   1.00pm - 12.00midnight

Neidpath Castle, Peebles

Neil Adamson OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Sale Of Timber Botanical Rum

Saturday 4 November 2023 - 10.00am - 12.30noon

Primary School, West Linton

Nicole Pickering OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Wedding

Saturday 4 November 2023  1.00pm - 12.00midnight

Wedderburn Castle, Duns

Pauline Drysdale OCCPLH Occasional Licence  - Farm Shop 

Friday 21 October  2023 to Thursday 3 November 2023    10:00am - 5:00pm

Mr Neep, Cockburnspath

Pauline Drysdale OCCPLH Occasional Licence  - Farm Shop 

Friday 4 November  2023 to Thursday 17 November 2023    10:00am - 5:00pm

Mr Neep, Cockburnspath

Pauline Drysdale OCCPLH Occasional Licence  - Farm Shop 

Friday 18 November  2023 to Thursday 1 December 2023    10:00am - 5:00pm

Mr Neep, Cockburnspath

Pauline Drysdale OCCPLH Occasional Licence  - Farm Shop 

Friday 2 December  2023 to Thursday 15 December 2023    10:00am - 5:00pm

Mr Neep, Cockburnspath

Pauline Drysdale OCCPLH Occasional Licence  - Farm Shop 

Friday 16 December  2023 to Thursday 29 December 2023    10:00am - 5:00pm

Mr Neep, Cockburnspath

Pauline Drysdale OCCPLH Occasional Licence  - Farm Shop 

Friday 30 December 2023 to Thursday 12 January 2024    10:00am - 5:00pm

Mr Neep, Cockburnspath

Robert Wilson OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Rugby Match and Social Gathering

Saturday 14 October 2023  1.00pm - 11.45pm

Walkerburn Rugby Football Club, Walkerburn

Robert Wilson OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Rugby Match and Social Gathering

Saturday 4 November 2023  1.00pm - 11.45pm

Walkerburn Rugby Football Club, Walkerburn

Robert Wilson OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Rugby Match and Social Gathering

Saturday 11 November 2023  1.00pm - 11.45pm

Walkerburn Rugby Football Club, Walkerburn

Robert Wilson OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Rugby Match and Social Gathering

Saturday 25 November 2023  1.00pm - 11.45pm

Walkerburn Rugby Football Club, Walkerburn

Robert Wilson OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Rugby Match and Social Gathering

Saturday 2 December 2023  1.00pm - 11.45pm

Walkerburn Rugby Football Club, Walkerburn

P
age 16



Rory Steel OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Wedding Ceremony and Reception

Saturday 21 October 2023   1.00pm - 12.00midnight

Aikwood Tower, Selkirk

Rosalia Pinto OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Dining and Delivery Services - Bella Sicily Restaurant

Monday 9 October 2023 - Sunday 22 October 2023 

Monday - Sunday  11.00am - 12.00midnight

Bella Sicily, Jedburgh

Rosalia Pinto OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Dining and Delivery Services - Bella Sicily Restaurant

Tuesday 24 October 2023 - Monday 6 November 2023 

Monday - Sunday  11.00am - 12.00midnight

Bella Sicily, Jedburgh

Rosalia Pinto OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Dining and Delivery Services - Bella Sicily Restaurant

Tuesday 7 November 2023 - Monday 20 November 2023  

Monday - Sunday  11.00am - 12.00midnight

Bella Sicily, Jedburgh

Rosalia Pinto OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Dining and Delivery Services - Bella Sicily Restaurant

Tuesday 21 November 2023 - Monday 4 December 2023  

Monday - Sunday  11.00am - 12.00midnight

Bella Sicily, Jedburgh

Scott Paterson OCCPLH Occasional Licence - An evening with (Jorg Albertz and Davy Robertson) Ex-Rangers players

Saturday, 11 November 2023 - 6.00pm - 1.00am

Volunteer Hall, Galashiels

Simon Rutherford OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Sale of Craft Gin Products - Christmas Market

Saturday 2 December 2023   10.00am - 4.00pm

Market Square, Galashiels

Simon Rutherford OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Sale of Craft Gin Products

Saturday 28 October 2023   10.00am - 1.30pm

The Square, Kelso

Simon Rutherford OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Heartland Market - Sale of Craft Gin Products

Saturday 4 November 2023   10.00am - 2.00pm

Channel Street, Galashiels

Simon Rutherford OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Kelso Farmers Market - Sale of Craft Gin Products

Saturday 25 November 2023   10.00am - 1.30pm

The Square, Kelso

Simon Rutherford OCCPLH Occasional Licence - Sale of Craft Gin Products

Sunday 26 November 2023   10.00am - 2.00pm

High Street, Jedburgh

Steven Drummond OCCPLH Occasional licence - Bingo and Disco Event

Saturday 28 October 2023 - 6.00pm - 1.00am

Town Hall, Hawick

Steven Drummond OCCPLH Occasional licence - 18th Birthday Party

Saturday 4 November 2023 - 6.00pm - 12.00midnight

St Mary's And St David's Church Hall, Hawick

Steven Drummond OCCPLH Occasional licence - Charity Bingo Event with Disco

Friday 10 November 2023 - 6.00pm - 1.00am

Community Centre, Chirnside

Steven Drummond OCCPLH Occasional licence - Weekly Bingo Night

Thursday 16 November 2023 - 5.00pm - 9.30pm

Evergreen Hall, Hawick

Steven Drummond OCCPLH Occasional licence - Weekly Bingo Night

Thursday 23 November 2023 - 5.00pm - 9.30pm

Evergreen Hall, Hawick

Steven Drummond OCCPLH Occasional licence - Weekly Bingo Night

Thursday 30 November 2023 - 5.00pm - 9.30pm

Evergreen Hall, Hawick

Steven Drummond OCCPLH Occasional licence - Weekly Bingo Night

Thursday 7 December 2023 - 5.00pm - 9.30pm

Evergreen Hall, Hawick

Steven Drummond OCCPLH Occasional licence - Weekly Bingo Night

Thursday 14 December 2023 - 5.00pm - 9.30pm

Evergreen Hall, Hawick

P
age 17



Steven Drummond OCCPLH Occasional licence - Weekly Bingo Night

Thursday 21 December 2023 - 5.00pm - 9.30pm

Evergreen Hall, Hawick

Steven Drummond OCCPLH Occasional licence - Weekly Bingo Night

Thursday 4 January 2024 - 5.00pm - 9.30pm

Evergreen Hall, Hawick

Steven Drummond OCCPLH Occasional licence - Weekly Bingo Night

Thursday 2 November 2023 - 5.00pm - 9.30pm

Evergreen Hall, Hawick

Steven Drummond OCCPLH Occasional licence - Weekly Bingo Night

Thursday 9 November 2023 - 5.00pm - 9.30pm

Evergreen Hall, Hawick

Steven Drummond OCCPLH Occasional licence - Weekly Bingo Night

Thursday 12 October 2023 - 5.00pm - 9.30pm

Evergreen Hall, Hawick

Steven Drummond OCCPLH Occasional licence - Weekly Bingo Night

Thursday 19 October 2023 - 5.00pm - 9.30pm

Evergreen Hall, Hawick

Steven Drummond OCCPLH Occasional licence - Weekly Bingo Night

Thursday 26 October 2023 - 5.00pm - 9.30pm

Evergreen Hall, Hawick

Blainslie Village Hall OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Community Quiz Night

Saturday 11 November 2023 - 6.30pm - 11.00pm

Village Hall, Blainslie

Chirnside Amateur Boxing Club OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Chirnside Amateur Boxing Club Home Boxing Show

Sunday 29 October 2023   12.00noon - 4.30pm

Primary School, Eyemouth

Cockburnspath Village Hall OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Quiz Night and Bar

Friday 20 October 2023    6.30pm - 12.00midnight

Village Hall, Cockburnspath

Denholm Folk Festival OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Folk Music Concert Performances

Friday 3 November 2023 and Saturday 4 November 2023 - 7.00pm - 1.00am

Village Hall, Denholm

Fountainhall Village Hall OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Social Gathering - Pub Night

Friday 3 November 2023   7.00pm - 12.00midnight

Village Hall, Fountainhall

Fountainhall Village Hall OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Social Gathering - Pub Night

Friday 1 December 2023   7.00pm - 12.00midnight

Village Hall, Fountainhall

Gattonside Village Hall OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Bonfire and BBQ

Saturday, 28th October 2023   5.30pm - 9.00pm

Village Hall, Gattonside

Gattonside Village Hall OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Theatre performance

Saturday, 25th November 2023 6.00pm - 10.00pm

Village Hall, Gattonside

Gavinton Village Hall OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Community Cinema

Friday 27 October 2023 - 6.30pm - 10.30pm

Village Green And Hall, Gavinton

Hawick Rotary Club OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Annual Quiz to Raise Money for Charity

Friday 10 November 2023   6.30pm - 10.30pm

St Mary And St Davids Church Hall, Hawick

Heiton Village Hall Committee OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Halloween Party - Heiton Village Hall

Saturday 28 October 2023    7.00pm - 11.00pm

Village Hall, Heiton

Heriot Country Kids OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Heriot Community Fireworks and Bonfire Event 

Saturday 4 November 2023   6.00pm - 12.00midnight

Williams Field, Heriot

Innerleithen Pipe Band OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Fundraising Quiz Night

Friday 10 November 2023   5.00pm - 1.00am

Pipe Band Hall, Innerleithen

Innerleithen Pipe Band OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Band Christmas Party

Saturday 9 December 2023   5.00pm - 1.00am

Pipe Band Hall, Innerleithen

P
age 18



John Elliot OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Welcome Lunch for French Visitors

Sunday 22 October 2023   2.30pm - 9.00pm

Community Centre St Cuthberts, Coldstream

John Elliot OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Farewell Dinner for French Visitors

Sunday 22 October 2023   5.30pm - 9.00pm

Community Centre St Cuthberts, Coldstream

Kerry Simmonds OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Quiz Night

Saturday, 14th October 2023 - 7.30pm - 10.30pm

Village Hall, Reston

Kirkhope Parish Hall OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Ian Lothian Hall Concert and Ceilidh

Saturday 11 November 2023   7.00pm - 11.00pm

Kirkhope Village Hall, Ettrickbridge

Kirkhope Parish Hall OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Music Concert - Live Band

Saturday 25 November 2023   7.30pm - 11.30pm

Kirkhope Village Hall, Ettrickbridge

Kirkhope Parish Hall OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Kevin Montgommery Accoustic Concert

Saturday 19 January 2024   7.00pm - 11.30pm

Kirkhope Village Hall, Ettrickbridge

Lodge Kelso And Tweed No.58 OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Monthly Meeting

Wednesday 18 October 2023   6.30pm - 11.30pm

Masonic Hall, Kelso

Lodge Kelso And Tweed No.58 OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Monthly Meeting

Wednesday 15 November 2023   6.30pm - 11.30pm

Masonic Hall, Kelso

Lodge Kelso And Tweed No.58 OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Monthly Meeting

Wednesday 20 December 2023   6.30pm - 11.30pm

Masonic Hall, Kelso

Lodge Kelso And Tweed No.58 OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Annual Installation Dinner

Saturday, 13 January 2024   5.00pm - 11.00pm

Masonic Hall, Kelso

Lodge Kelso And Tweed No.58 OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Burns Supper

Saturday 10 February 2024   6.30pm - 11.30pm

Masonic Hall, Kelso

Lodge Kelso And Tweed No.58 OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Monthly Meeting

Wednesday 20 March 2024   6.30pm - 11.30pm

Masonic Hall, Kelso

Lodge Kelso And Tweed No.58 OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Monthly Meeting

Wednesday 17 April 2024   6.30pm - 11.30pm

Masonic Hall, Kelso

Lodge Kelso And Tweed No.58 OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Fundraising Event for Armed Forces Veterans

Friday 24 April 2024    6.30pm - 11.30pm

Masonic Hall, Kelso

Melrose Waverley Tennis Club OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Quiz Night

Friday 10 November 2023   7.00pm - 10.00pm

Smith Memorial Hall, Darnick

Newcastleton School Partnership OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Fundraising Event - Snowman Drive (Seasonal Beetle Drive)

Friday, 10th November 2023   7.00pm - 12.00midnight

Primary School, Newcastleton

Redpath Village Hall Association OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Village Pub Night

Friday 3 November 2023   6.00pm - 12.00midnight

Village Hall, Redpath

St Ronan's Silver Band OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Bingo night

Saturday 21st October 2023   6.00pm - 11.45pm

Silver Band Hall, Innerleithen

The Berwickshire Hunt OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Sunday Lunch

Sunday, 22 October 2023   1.00pm - 5.00pm

Village Hall, Foulden

Wauchope Hall Trustees OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Live Music Concert

Friday 13 October 2023   7.00pm - 10.00pm

Wauchope Hall, Town Yetholm

Wauchope Hall Trustees OCCVOL Occasional Licence - Charity Bingo Night

Thursday 19 October 2023   7.00pm - 9.30pm

Wauchope Hall, Town Yetholm

Aaron Richardson PERLIC Grant N/A

P
age 19



Andrew Morrison PERLIC Grant N/A

Colleen White PERLIC Grant N/A

Craig Purves PERLIC Grant N/A

David Higgins PERLIC Grant N/A

Anthony Mitchell PERLIC Renewal N/A

Eyemouth High School Parent Council SMLOTT Grant N/A

The Rotary Club of Duns SMLOTT Grant N/A

Eyemouth United Congregational Church SMLOTT Renewal N/A

Friends of Earlston Primary School PTA and 

ELC

SMLOTT Renewal N/A

P
age 20



 

 

 
 

SCOTTISH BORDERS LICENSING BOARD 

 

APPLICATION FOR PROVISIONAL PREMISES LICENCE* 

*Delete as appropriate 

Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005, section 20 

 

APPLICANT INFORMATION Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005, section 20(1) 

Question 1 

Name, address and postcode of premises to be licensed. 

Bella Sicily 

12 Canongate 

Jedburgh 

TD8 6AJ  

 

Question 2 

Particulars of applicant 

(a) Where applicant is an individual, provide full name, date and place of birth, and home address 
including postcode. 

N/A 

 

(b) Where applicant is a partnership, please provide full name, and postal address of partnership. 

Gianluca Allicate,  

Caterina Pinto,  

 

 

(c) Where applicant is a company, please provide name, registered office and company registration 
number. 

 

N/A 

 

 

(d) Where the applicant is a club or other body, please provide full name, and postal address of club 
or other body. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6a



 

 

 

N/A 

 

 

(e) Where applicant is a partnership, company, club or other body, please provide the names, dates 
and places of birth, and home addresses of connected persons.* 

Gianluca Allicate,  
 

Caterina Pinto,  
 

 

 

* Connected person is defined in section 147(3) of the Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005. 

 

Question 3 

Previous applications 

Has the applicant been refused a premises licence under section 23 of the Licensing (Scotland) Act 
2005 in respect of the same premises?                           NO 

 If YES – provide full details  

 

 

Question 4 

Previous convictions  

Has the applicant or any connected person ever been convicted of a relevant or 
foreign offence (1) 

 

NO 

*If YES – provide full details  

 

For the purpose of this Act, a conviction for a relevant offence or foreign offence is to be disregarded 
if it is spent for the purpose of the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 

Name & position 
(if applicable) 

Date of conviction or 
sentence 

Court Offence Penalty 

 

 

 

    

 
(1) In addition to any convictions held by the applicant at the time of application, applicants should also familiarise themselves with the contents of 

section 24(1) of the Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005 in respect of any convictions for relevant or foreign offences which they may receive during the 
period beginning with the making of the premises licence application and ending with determination of the application. 

Page 22



 

 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005, section 20(2)(a) 

Question 5 

Description of premises (where application is submitted by a members’ club, please also complete 
question 6) 

Ground floor terraced premises in Jedburgh town centre comprising of lower and upper 
seating areas, kitchen, toilets and storage area. Retail premises on either side with 
residential premises above. 

 

 

Question 6 

To be completed by members’ clubs only 

Do the club’s constitution and rules conform to the requirements of 
regulation 2 of the Licensing (Clubs) (Scotland) Regulations 2007? 

YES/NO*  

 

*delete as appropriate 

 

 

DECLARATION BY APPLICANT OR AGENT ON BEHALF OF APPLICANT 

If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity. 

The contents of this Application are true to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

Signature ……………………………………………………………………….……… * (see note below) 

Date …………………………………………………………………………….……… 

Capacity …………………….……………………………. APPLICANT/AGENT (delete as appropriate) 

Telephone number and email address of signatory ……………………………………………………… 

 

I have enclosed the relevant documents with this application – please tick the relevant boxes 

Operating plan  

Layout plan  

Planning certificate  

Building standards certificate  

Food hygiene certificate  

* Data Protection Act 1998 

The information on this form may be held on an electronic public register which may be available to 
members of the public on request. 

 

 

 

For use by the Licensing Board only 

Page 23



 

 

Application checklist 

Date received  

Fee amount  

Receipt number  

Received by (INITIALS)  

Consideration date  

Last date for consideration  

Date of initial hearing  

Date of any modification hearing  

Date granted/refused (delete as appropriate)  

 

For use by the Licensing Board only 
If application is for a premises licence - Documents required 

Operating plan  

Layout plan  

Planning certificate  

Building standards certificate  

Food hygiene certificate  

 
If application is for a provisional premises licence - Documents required 

Provisional planning certificate  

Operating plan  

Layout plan  

 

Page 24



 

 

 
 

SCOTTISH BORDERS LICENSING BOARD 

 

OPERATING PLAN  

 

 Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005, section 20(2)(b)(i) 

 

Question 1 

STATEMENT REGARDING ALCOHOL BEING SOLD ON PREMISES/OFF PREMISES OR BOTH 

 

(a) Will alcohol be sold for consumption solely ON the premises? NO 

(b) Will alcohol be sold for consumption solely OFF the premises? NO 

(c) Will alcohol be sold for consumption both ON and OFF the premises? YES 

*delete as appropriate 

 

 

Question 2 

STATEMENT OF CORE TIMES WHEN ALCOHOL WILL BE SOLD FOR CONSUMPTION ON 
PREMISES 

 

Day ON Consumption 

 Opening time Terminal hour 

Monday                11.00 am            12.00 midnight 

Tuesday                11.00 am            12.00 midnight 

Wednesday                11.00 am            12.00 midnight 

Thursday                11.00 am            12.00 midnight 

Friday                11.00 am            12.00 midnight 

Saturday                11.00 am            12.00 midnight 

Sunday                11.00 am            12.00 midnight 

Page 25



 

 

Question 3 

STATEMENT OF CORE TIMES WHEN ALCOHOL WILL BE SOLD FOR CONSUMPTION OFF 
PREMISES 

Day OFF Consumption 

 Opening time Terminal hour 

Monday 10 a.m. 10 p.m. 

Tuesday 10 a.m. 10 p.m. 

Wednesday 10 a.m. 10 p.m. 

Thursday 10 a.m. 10 p.m. 

Friday 10 a.m. 10 p.m. 

Saturday 10 a.m. 10 p.m. 

Sunday 10 a.m. 10 p.m. 

 

Question 4 

SEASONAL VARIATIONS 

Does the applicant intend to operate according to seasonal demand YES 

*If YES – provide details 

Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, Boxing Day, New Years Eve and New Years Day open until 1 
am or any other Licensing Board Policy. 

 

 

Question 5 

PLEASE INDICATE THE OTHER ACTIVITIES OR SERVICES THAT WILL BE PROVIDED ON THE 
PREMISES IN ADDITION TO SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL  

COL. 1 

(a)  Activity 

COL. 2 

Please 
confirm 

YES/NO 

COL. 3 

To be provided during 
core licensed hours – 
please confirm 

YES/NO 

COL. 4 

Where activities are also to 
be provided outwith core 
licensed hours please 
confirm 

YES/NO 

Accommodation         NO NO NO 

Conference facilities         YES YES YES 

Restaurant facilities YES YES YES 

Bar meals         NO NO NO 
  

Page 26



 

 

(b) Activity 

Social functions 
including: 

 

Please 
confirm 

YES/NO 

To be provided during 
core licensed hours – 
please confirm 

YES/NO 

Where activities are also to 
be provided outwith core 
licensed hours please 
confirm 

YES/NO 

Receptions including 
weddings, funerals, 
birthdays, retirements 
etc. 

YES YES YES 

Club or other group 
meetings etc. 

 

YES YES YES 

(c) Activity   

Entertainment including: 

Please 
confirm 

YES/NO 

To be provided during 
core licensed hours – 
please confirm 

YES/NO 

Where activities are also to 
be provided outwith core 
licensed hours please 
confirm    YES/NO 

Recorded music –see 5(g) YES YES YES 

Live performance – see 
5(g) 

YES YES YES 

Dance facilities  NO NO NO 

Theatre NO NO NO 

Films YES YES YES 

Gaming YES YES NO 

Indoor/outdoor sports NO NO NO 

Televised sport YES YES YES 

(d) Activity 

 

Please 
confirm 

YES/NO 

To be provided during 
core licensed hours – 
please confirm 

YES/NO 

Where activities are also to 
be provided outwith core 
licensed hours please 
confirm       YES/NO 

Outdoor drinking facilities NO NO NO 

(e) Activity 

 

Please 
confirm 

YES/NO 

To be provided during 
core licensed hours – 
please confirm 

YES/NO 

Where activities are also to 
be provided outwith core 
licensed hours please 
confirm  YES/NO 

Adult entertainment  NO NO NO 

Where you have answered YES in respect of any entry in column 4 above, please provide further 
details below. 

The premises will operate daily as a Restaurant and may open for breakfast meals. 
Activities may commence prior to core hours but will not extend beyond without the benefit 
of an extended hours licence. 

 

 

Page 27



 

 

(f) any other activities 

If you propose to provide any activities other than those listed in 5(a) – (e) please provide details or 
further information in the box below. 

The premises will operate as a Restaurant/ with alcohol served generally but not 
exclusively as an accompaniment to food as well as being offered as an off sale including 
accompanying takeaway and delivery food orders.  

 

(g) Late night premises opening after 1.00am       

Where you have confirmed that you are providing live or recorded music, will the 
decibel level exceed 85dB? 

N/A 

 

When fully occupied, are there likely to be more customers standing than seated? N/A 

*delete as appropriate 

 

Question 6 (On-sales only) 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PERSONS  

(a) When alcohol is being sold for consumption on the premises will children or 
young persons be allowed entry 

YES 

*delete as appropriate 

(b) Where the answer to 6(a) is YES provide statement of the TERMS under which they will be 
allowed entry 

Children accompanied by a responsible adult for the purpose of dining or partaking of light 
refreshments or when attending a pre-arranged private function.   

Young Persons for the same purposes, but without the requirement of being accompanied. 

 

(c) Provide statement regarding the AGES of children or young persons to be allowed entry 

Children - 0 to 15 years. 

Young Persons  - 16 and 17 years 

 

(d) Provide statement regarding the TIMES during which children and young persons will be 
allowed entry 

Children and Young Persons when dining until 10.00 pm 

Children and Young Persons when attending a pre-arranged private function – Core Hours 

 

(e) Provide statement regarding the PARTS of the premises to which children and young 
persons will be allowed entry 

All public areas. 

 

 

Question 7 

Page 28



 

 

CAPACITY OF PREMISES 

What is the proposed capacity of the premises to which this application relates? 

50 

 

 

Question 8 

PREMISES MANAGER (NOTE: not required where application is for grant of provisional premises 
licence) 

Personal details 

(a) Name 

 

(b) Date of birth 

 

(c) Contact address 

 

(d) Telephone number and e-mail address 

 

(e) Personal licence 

Date of issue Name of Licensing Board issuing Reference no. of personal licence 

 

 

  

 

DECLARATION BY APPLICANT OR AGENT ON BEHALF OF APPLICANT  

If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity. 

 

The contents of this operating plan are true to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

 

Signature ……………………………………………………………………….……… * (see note below) 

Date ………………………………………………………………………….………… 

Capacity …………………………………………………. APPLICANT/AGENT (delete as appropriate). 

Telephone number and email address of signatory ……………………………………………………… 

 

 

* Data Protection Act 1998     The information on this form may be held on an electronic public 
register which may be available to members of the public on request. 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Restaurant

cyl

WC

WC

store

archway

step

step

step

stepstep

step

st
ep

st
ep st

ep

st
ep store  fire

escape

Restaurant

store

  fire
escape

Kitchen

step

step

step

step

archway

Entrance

Revision             Date              Description                                                          Drawn

Client:
Bella Sicily
Project:
12 Canongate, Jedburgh
Drawing Title:
Existing Ground Floor Plan

Job no:          Drawing no:         Drawn:         Checked:          Date:           Scale:
G.0463          E001                    DG                                        June'23     shown@A4

Croupyett  Ancrum  Jedburgh  TD8 6UJ                                    gibsonarchitects.co.uk
Gibson Architects Limited                                                 info@gibsonarchitects.co.uk

Do not scale. All dimensions to be checked on site prior to fabrication of components
or execution of works. This drawing, the design and information contained within are
Copyright of Gibson Architects Limited and must not be used or reproduced without
express permission. Gibson Architects Limited shall not be liable if used or
reproduced without authorisation.

Notes:

Existing Ground Floor Plan
1:100

10 2 3 4 5 10

Scale Bar 1:100

Metres

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33

Agenda Item 6b



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
LP – 1 Newtown St Boswells   Fax: 01835 826693 

Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  
 

    Nuala McKinlay 

Director of Corporate Governance 
 

 

 
 
The Clerk 
Scottish Borders Licensing Board 
Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
TD6 OSA 
 

Please ask for: Mike Wynne 
DDI: 01835 825198 

Our Ref: MW 

Your Ref:  

E-Mail: Michael.wynne@scotborders.gov.uk   

Date: 16th October 2023 

 
 
SCOTTISH BORDERS LICENSING BOARD-FESTIVE HOURS 2023/24 
 
I submit this report for consideration by Scottish Borders Licensing Board 
 
Board’s Policy Terminal Hours - Sunday to Wednesday midnight; Thursday to Saturday 1.00am. 
 
Boards Festive Season Policy 
The vast majority of licensed premises in the Scottish Borders have a seasonal variation included 
in their Operating Plans allowing a terminal hour of 1.00am on the following days – Christmas Eve, 
Christmas Day, Boxing Day, New Year’s Eve and New Year’s Day.   
 
For 2023/24, Christmas Eve and New Years’ Eve are on Sundays with Christmas Day and New 
Years Day being a Monday and Boxing Day being a Tuesday. 
 
In relation to the aforementioned festive dates, as in previous years, it would seem appropriate to 
allow the premises who do not have this seasonal variation to apply for an extension to their core 
hours up to the same terminal hour (1am) on these days and for those applications to be dealt with 
under delegated powers where no other objections or representations are received.  In the case of 
those applications that attract objections or representations, they would be referred to the Board 
for a decision as required by legislation. 
 
In addition, it would seem appropriate that the same policy is applied to events being catered for in 
unlicensed premises by way of an Occasional Licence. 
 
Night Club/Late Hours Premises 
Again, as in previous years and with regard to consistency,  it is suggested that it would be 
appropriate to allow night club premises to apply for extensions to their existing hours on these 
festive dates allowing them to trade to their usual core weekend hours.  This preserves their 
normal weekend time differential between specific late night venues and other licensed premises.   
Any extended hours applications for these dates could be dealt with under delegated powers 
where no other objections or representations are received. In a case of an application attracting 
objections or representations, it would be referred to the Board for a decision as required by 
legislation. 
 
Applications for Other Hours 
Any applications for a terminal hour other than for the days or late times stated above would be 
referred to the Board for a decision on their own individual merits 

 

Regards 

Mike Wynne, Licensing Standards and Enforcement Officer 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:bfrater@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Briefing Note 
Statement of Licensing Policy 

 
Scottish Borders Licensing Board 

 
 Friday 17 November 2023 

 

The purpose of this note is to update Members with regard to the review of the Board’s Statement of 

Licensing Policy for the period November 2023 to November 2028.  

At its meeting on 28 April 2023, the Board agreed with Licensing Officers’ views that minimal changes to 

the policy were required and agreed that the suggested amendments be put out for public consultation. 

As it happened, the Licensing Forum, which the Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005 requires each local authority 

to have, set up its own consultation, a Community Insight into Alcohol Impacts and Licensing in the 

Scottish Borders. The Forum’s consultation ran from 25 May 2023 to 16 July 2023 and it is understood 

that the responses received aided the Forum in framing its response to the Boards own consultation 

process. In order to avoid possible confusion with the Forum’s consultation, the Board’s consultation 

process was held back and ran from 21 July 2023 to 17 September 2023. Unfortunately, it appears that 

those who responded to the Forum’s consultation did not respond to the Board’s consultation and as a 

result only three responses were received, one from the Forum, one from the Borders Alcohol and Drugs 

Partnership and one from the Jethart Callants Festival.  The responses received from both the Licensing 

Forum and the Borders Alcohol and Drugs Partnership were broadly the same and made the same 

observations and suggestions. 

Attached with this note are the following: 

1. The draft Policy Statement with suggested changes highlighted in red in paragraphs 1.8, 4.1, 6.3, 

7.8, 8.1 and 8.3. 

2. The Licensing Forum’s response to the Board’s consultation. 

3. The Borders Alcohol and Drugs Partnership response to the Board’s consultation. 

4. The Jethart Callant’s Festival’s response to the Board’s consultation.   

Licensing Officers have reviewed the responses received and after consideration feel that no further 

changes are required to those highlighted on the draft policy statement. Licensing Officers considered 

that the suggestions contained within the responses received from both the Licensing Forum and the 

Borders Alcohol and Drugs partnership are measures that the Board already takes anyway. For example, 

the Licensing Forum’s response suggests that in order to promote the Licensing Objective of  Preventing 

Crime and Disorder that the Board should consider applying appropriate conditions to licences to mitigate 

the potential risk of crime and disorder and conduct review hearings where licensees fail to implement 

control measures on the basis that they are no longer fit and proper persons to operate licensed premises 

when the Board does both of these things already anyway. 

Licensing Officers would welcome the Board members’ views on whether the suggested changes to the 

draft Policy Statement are sufficient. 

 

Ron Kirk 

Managing Solicitor – Property and Licencing 

Legal Services  

Page 47

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

 

 
DRAFT  

 
SCOTTISH BORDERS LICENSING BOARD 

 
STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 

 
LICENSING (SCOTLAND) ACT 2005 

 
November 2023 - November 2028 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



 

2 

 

Contents 
 
1. Introduction 
2. The Licensing Objectives 
3. Board Business 
4. Overprovision 
5. Occupancy 
6. Premises Licences 
7. Licensed Hours and Extended Hours 
8. Home Deliveries/Remote Sales 
9. Members Clubs 
10. Garages 
11. Outside Drinking Areas 
12. Occasional Licences 
13. Irresponsible Promotions 
14. Personal Licences 
15. Designated Premises Managers 
16. Annual Fees 
17. Licensing Standards Enforcement Officers 
 
 
 
 
1 INTRODUCTION 
 
 1.1 For the purposes of the Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005 as amended (“the Act”), the 

Scottish Borders Licensing Board (“the Board”) is the Licensing Authority for the Scottish 
Borders area.  

 
 1.2 The Act requires the Board to publish a Statement of Licensing Policy.   It is expected 

that Boards will generally publish their Policy within 18 months of any local government 
election which will have effect until 18 months after the next local government election.  

 
  This Statement fulfils that statutory duty for the Scottish Borders for the period from 

November 2023 to November 2028. 
 
 1.3  The Board’s role is to regulate the sale of alcohol and the premises on which it is sold.   

In doing so, it is required to ensure its policies promote the licensing objectives as set 
out in the Act. 

 
 1.4 The licensing objectives are: 
 
  (a)  Preventing Crime and Disorder 
  (b)  Securing Public Safety 
  (c)  Preventing Public Nuisance  
  (d)  Protecting and Improving Public Health 
  (e)  Protecting Children and Young Persons from Harm 
 
 1.5  The Board will consider the individual circumstances of each application based on the 

information provided to it. This Policy will assist applicants to put in place appropriate 
measures to ensure the licensing objectives are met. The Board is aware of the 
importance of sporting, local traditional festival and historical common riding events 

Page 50



 

3 

 

within its area.  Evidence of the potential impact on the licensing objectives within the 
Board area is highlighted in the Scottish Borders Alcohol Profile which can be accessed 
on the Council’s website http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/licensingforum 

 
  Where the Board considers there to be any inconsistency with one or more of the 

licensing objectives, this may form the basis of a decision for refusal of an application.  
Before making a decision, the Board will invite applicants and relevant interested parties 
to make representation to them either in person or in writing.  

 
 1.6 Overall the number of licensed premises in the Scottish Borders has remained relatively 

stable over previous years (now - 443 as at October 2022 compared with 466 in October 
2017). The Act requires Boards to produce a statement of overprovision and with this in 
mind, Scottish Borders Licensing Board may take the view that if premises are not trading 
and annual fees remain unpaid for a period in excess of twelve months a premises review 
application may require to be considered. 

 
 1.7  The Board’s licensing powers are not the main statutory mechanism for dealing with all 

regulatory regimes.  Responsibility for meeting any other statutory requirements rests 
with individual applicants. A contacts list for other regulatory functions is provided at 
Appendix 1. 

 
  The Board will avoid duplication with other statutory bodies or other systems of control 

outwith the licensing remit but will always exercise its powers where necessary with 
regard to any of the licensing objectives. 

 
 1.8  The Board complies with its duties under the Equality Act 2010 and its current Equalities 

Outcomes and Mainstreaming Report is incorporated into the wider Council Report and 
has been published on its website.  It. opposes all forms of unlawful discrimination and 
will expect all parties to work to delivering equality for all people.   

 
 1.9 You can contact the Licensing Unit of Scottish Borders Council by: 
 
  E-mail:   liquorandlicensing@scotborders.gov.uk  
  Phone:    01835 826662 
  Or in writing:  Licensing Unit  

   Regulatory Services – Legal and Licensing  
   Scottish Borders Council  
   Council Headquarters  
   Newtown St Boswells TD6 0SA 

 
 
2 LICENSING OBJECTIVES 
 
 2.1 The Board’s Policy Statement will promote and consider the licensing objectives.  The 

Board requires licensees to have policies in place that demonstrate how they will meet 
the licensing objectives.  The following are examples of measures expected to be in 
place.   

 
2.1.1  Preventing Crime and Disorder 
 

Underage drinking: 

• Use of accredited proof of age cards 

• Enforcement of mandatory Challenge 25 policy 

Drunkenness on the premises:  

• Effective and responsible management of premises 

• Training and supervision of staff 

Page 51

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/licensingforum


 

4 

 

• Clear notices stating zero tolerance for any patrons appearing to be under 
 the influence of alcohol 

• Drink driving awareness and consideration of designated driver policy 

Illegal possession and/or use of drugs: 

• Implementation of a drugs policy, induction and ongoing CPD training 

Violent, aggressive behaviour and antisocial behaviour: 

• Effective and responsible management of premises 

• Suitable stewarding 

• Consideration of CCTV systems 

2.1.2 Securing Public Safety 

• Premises to be kept in a safe manner including the occupancy, design,  
 stability, layout of the premises and provision of adequate internal and 
 external lighting   

• All access and exits to the premises for pedestrians and vehicles to 
ensure 

 ease of access for emergency vehicles 

• Measures to limit the accumulation of glass bottles or litter on the 
premises  

 including outside areas and immediate vicinity  

• Compliance with the Fire (Scotland) Act 2005 as amended and associated  
 Regulations (see Appendix 9) 

 
2.1.3 Protecting and Improving Public Health 
 

• A record of alcohol sales refused and reasons for refusal (Refusals  
 book/register); 

• Promotion of responsible drinking. You may wish to consider the Chief  
 Medical Officers low risk guidelines available at http://ow.ly/8c0b30m63Pr 

• Strict compliance to mandatory conditions particularly to irresponsible  
 Promotions; 

• Consider providing a suitable selection of reasonably priced non-
alcoholic  

 beverages. Consider offering free or reduced price soft drinks for designated 
 driver; 

• Display comprehensive price list of alcoholic and non-alcoholic 
beverages  

 available as a matter of good practice; 

• Consider including the number of units contained in each alcoholic 
beverage 

 on price list. 

 
2.1.4 Preventing Public Nuisance 
 

• Signage relating to litter, noise or antisocial behaviour when leaving 
 premises  

• Appropriate stewarding 

• Consider specialised training for staff dealing with dispersal and difficult 
 customers 

• Provision of contact details for local transport 

 
2.1.5 Protecting Children and Young Persons from Harm 
 

Page 52

http://ow.ly/8c0b30m63Pr


 

5 

 

 The Board expects that children and young persons will normally be admitted to 
on sale premises for the purpose of consuming light refreshments or a meal, 
participating in a relevant sporting activity or attending a pre-arranged function or 
event.  The Board will have particular concerns where it is proposed to allow 
access for children and young persons where the supply and consumption of 
alcohol is the main activity. 

 
 Children should always be accompanied by a responsible adult. Young persons 

access will be assessed in relation to the nature of activity and consistency with 
the licensing objectives.    

 
 The following are suggested control measures  
 

• Effective and responsible premises management and training  

• Implement regular in-house test purchasing exercises and develop a 
staff  

 policy of steps to be taken in the event of underage patrons or adults 
 attempting to purchase alcohol on their behalf  

• Ensure that staff are fully aware of the hours children and young persons  
 may access the premises, the designated areas they are permitted to  
 access and the supervision requirements for children and young persons 
 who may be present, all of which will be specified in the Premises Operating  
 Plan. 

• Strict enforcement of mandatory Challenge 25 Policy – it is a legal  
 requirement to request ID from anyone who appears to be under the age of  
 25. 

 
3 BOARD BUSINESS 
 

3.1 The Board will deal with all its business in an open, accessible and transparent way. 
Meetings will be held in public but for legal reasons, some matters may require to be 
held in private. The procedure at Board hearings is attached at Appendix 2.  

 
3.2 The Board has adopted a Scheme of Delegation to ensure that decisions can be made 

in an efficient and timely manner.  This is attached as Appendix 4 to this Statement and 
will be kept under review by the Board.  

 
3.3 For applications that cannot be dealt with by delegated powers, the Board will normally 

meet on a monthly basis in the premises of Scottish Borders Council.  The Board will 
give notice of applications received and publish application forms, agendas and minutes 
of its meetings on Scottish Borders Council’s website www.scotborders.gov.uk.These 
are available in alternative formats on request. 

 
3.4 The Board will consider all applications on their own merits with regard to its Policy and 

the licensing objectives.  
 
 
4. OVERPROVISION  
  

4.1 The Act places a legal requirement on the Board to include a statement of its 
overprovision assessment within its Policy.   

 
The Scottish Borders Licensing Board will consider overprovision when new premises 
licence applications come before it. Members Clubs are exempt from the overprovision 
assessment.  The Board will take into consideration the likely impact on the licensing 
objectives in the area where the premises are located, the type of premises along with 

Page 53

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

6 

 

the proposed licensed hours and capacity.  The Board will refer to all the evidence 
available.  

 
4.2 The Board acknowledges the work carried out by and on behalf of the Scottish Borders 

Licensing Forum by way of the multi agency data gathering project and the subsequently 
produced report “Scottish Borders Alcohol Profile”. The Alcohol Profile forms an 
invaluable evidence base which has been most useful in the compilation of this Policy 
and the Board will have regard to the Profile when determining applications.   

 
4.3 When considering applications for a particular type of premises in a particular area the 

Board will consider the locality as the Intermediate Geographies detailed in the Alcohol 
Profile as the area within which the premises are situated, but will also take into account 
the immediate adjoining areas.  

 
4.4   The Board is aware that almost three-quarters of alcohol is sold in supermarkets and off 

sale premises. Given the rural spread of the Scottish Borders area, alcohol may not be 
consumed and associated harm may not take place in the area it was purchased. When 
considering overprovision in a specific locality, the Board will also take into account the 
overall availability in the Borders. 

 
4.5 The number of licensed late night hours entertainment premises (after 1.00am) within 

Scottish Borders is currently four.  The Board is of a view that any increase beyond that 
number could be overprovision. 

 
4.6 The Board strongly considers well run on sale premises are a preferred and safer 

environment for alcohol consumption and should be encouraged over drinking in the 
home or any other unlicensed environment. On sale premises which provide a full range 
of services, for example food and quality accommodation, will be encouraged in most 
areas.  

 
4.7 With regard to off sales, the Board is conscious of the fact that the capacity required to 

be shown within the premises can sometimes be confusing and even seem somewhat 
irrelevant. The Board does acknowledge that display areas can be a factor in 
encouraging purchase and ultimately consumption and as such will look for detailed 
justification for any application to have a display area in excess of 10% of the overall 
sales area of premises, other than dedicated wine and spirit merchants.   

 
 While Regulations* dictate the requirement for display areas to be shown as height and 

width of display with a linear measurement of displays outwith that on a layout plan, the 
Board will further require layout plans to clearly show the area, lined and shaded, as a 
square metres of floor area given over to alcohol display when any relevant application 
is submitted.   

 
4.8 When the Board is aware of licensed premises which are not trading, it may take steps 

to review those premises licences to maintain an accurate assessment of overprovision. 
 

* The Premises Licence (Scotland) Regulations 2007 (SSI 452) and The Licensing (Mandatory 
Conditions No. 2) (Scotland) Regulations 2007 (SSI 546) 

 
 
5. OCCUPANCY 
 

5.1 Occupancy capacity is a factor in the assessment of overprovision and a factor for 
premises and events to achieve the licensing objectives.  

 
5.2 The Board will take account of any maximum occupancy limit set by Scottish Borders 

Council’s Building Standards service if deemed appropriate to ensure safety of persons 

Page 54



 

7 

 

in premises and safe escape in the case of emergency. If there are additional concerns 
about crime and disorder or public nuisance, the Board may consider setting a lower 
maximum occupancy limit than recommended by Building Standards.  

 
5.3 The Board will expect applicants to consider various factors when assessing the 

appropriate capacity for premises or events. Depending on the individual premises, 
examples of these include:  

➢ The design and layout of the premises  
➢ The location, availability and size of exits including emergency exits 
➢ The provision of adequate internal and external lighting   
➢ The nature of the premises or event 
➢ The nature of the activities being provided  
➢ The provision or removal of temporary structures such as a stage or furniture 
➢ The number of staff available to supervise customers both ordinarily and in 

the event of an emergency 
➢ The profile of the customers  
➢ The attendance of customers with disabilities 
➢ The provision of suitable and sufficient accessible toilet facilities 
➢ The nature and provision of facilities for ventilation 

  
 
6. PREMISES LICENCES 
 

6.1 Premises that wish to sell alcohol for consumption on or off the premises are required to 
have a Premises Licence.  This will regulate, amongst other things, what activities are 
allowed on the premises and what hours the premises can be open for business. There 
must be a description of the premises, an operating plan and a layout plan of the whole 
premises.  

  
 Applicants should pay particular attention to the operating plan and the layout plan.  If a 

particular activity is not mentioned in the operating plan, that activity cannot take place 
on those premises.  Once in place, any changes to a premises licence will require an 
application for variation to be submitted for further approval by the Board. 

 
 The operating plan must set out clearly the applicant’s proposals for the sale of alcohol, 

including the activities that would be undertaken on the premises, proposed opening 
hours, and their policy in relation to children and young persons.  With particular 
reference to children and young persons, whilst the Board wishes to encourage inclusive 
activities, it will have particular concerns in permitting children and young persons into 
premises where the supply and consumption of alcohol is the main activity.  The Board 
considers premises more suitable to be accessed by children and young persons where 
there is food provision, a relevant sporting activity or pre-arranged function or event. It 
will assess the times of access and supervision arrangements based on the individual 
circumstances with regard to the licensing objective protecting children and young 
persons from harm.  

 
 The layout plan should show, among other things, the area where alcohol will be sold, 

including any proposed licensed outside drinking area(s), seating arrangements, any 
accessible arrangements, the location of any gaming machines and areas where children 
and young persons are to be allowed. 

 
 The Board’s licensing support staff will provide guidance and advice to applicants in 

relation to the requirements for operating plans and layout plans and applicants are 
encouraged to contact them prior to submission of an application.   It should be noted 
that neither the Board nor any of its support staff can provide legal advice in relation to 
applications and applicants should seek independent legal advice prior to submission of 
an application. 

Page 55



 

8 

 

 
6.1.1 Notification of Premises Licence applications. 
 The Licensing Board must give notice of a Premises Licence application to the 

following: 
 

▪ Chief Constable, Police Scotland 
▪ Scottish Fire and Rescue Service 
▪ Scottish Borders Council 
▪ the local Health Board for the area 
▪ each person having a notifiable interest in neighbouring land  
▪ any Community Council within whose area the premises are situated 

 
All applications will be advertised on the Council’s website –www.scotborders.gov.uk 
and the applicant has a legal duty to display a public notice at the premises for 21 
days. 
 
6.1.2 Objections and Representations.   
 Any person may object to an application for Premises Licence.  The Board will 

consider any objection received if it relates to one or more of the licensing 
objectives.  Where this is not the case, the Board may consider the objection to 
be frivolous or vexatious and determine not to take account of it in determining 
an application.   

 
6.1.3. Consideration of Premises Licence application.  
 The Board will determine each premises licence application on its individual 

merits having regard to the information provided in the operating plan, layout 
plan, any supplementary papers in support of the application ie applicant’s in-
house policy statements and any competent objections received. In addition, the 
Board will assess the application in relation to its overprovision statement policy 
and may request an Anti Social Behaviour Report if it deems necessary to do so. 

 
The Board will have particular regard to: 

•  The nature of the premises, the style and type of use, the potential 
number and profile of the customers likely to attend the premises; 

•  The proposed hours of operation; 

•  The means of access to the premises including the location of 
customer entrances and exits taking account of accessibility;  

•  The provision of toilet facilities including consideration to provision of 
sufficient accessible toilet facilities; 

•  Whether children and/or young persons are to have access to the 
premises or part(s) of the premises and upon what terms; 

•  Areas or activities which have potential crime and disorder or public 
nuisance and any measures to mitigate those issues ie the requirement for 
CCTV and door steward arrangements to be put in place.  

 
6.1.4 Conditions.   
 Mandatory Conditions for all Premises Licences are prescribed in the Act 

attached as Appendix 4, and Regulations.  In determining an application, the 
Board may impose additional conditions to promote one or more of the licensing 
objectives or otherwise give effect to the terms of its Policy Statement or the 
provisions of the Act.   

   
6.2 Management of Premises.   
 

6.2.1. The Board expects that licence holders and their staff will operate their premises 
in a manner consistent with the licensing objectives.  Applicant’s in-house policies 
will require to be evidenced to address the following areas: 

Page 56

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

9 

 

➢ Proof of Age  
➢ Staff Training  
➢ Incident Book 
➢ Noise 
➢ Dispersal of Patrons 
➢ Smoking and monitoring the behaviour of patrons in the vicinity of licensed 

premises in particular beer gardens and outside smoking areas 
➢ Litter and Waste Management 
➢ CCTV  
➢ Compliance with the requirements of the Equality Act 2010  
➢ Safe evacuation of all patrons in the case of emergency 
➢ Consideration of undertaking and reviewing an Access Audit 
➢ the prevention of the misuse of drugs on the premises. 

 
6.2.2 Condition of Premises.   
 Licence holders and their staff are expected to ensure that the premises, both 

internally and externally, are maintained in a good, clean and tidy condition at all 
times. 

 
6.2.3 Seating Provision.   
 The Board will expect adequate seating to be available within on sale premises. 
 
6.2.4 Pubwatch.   
 Pubwatch can be useful to licence holders and their staff in preventing crime and 

disorder and undue public nuisance.  The Board supports and encourages 
Pubwatch schemes within its area.  

 
6.2.5 Best Bar None.   
 The Best Bar None Scheme is a nationally recognised award scheme which 

assists licence holders and staff in addressing the licensing objectives.  The 
Board supports the Scheme and encourages involvement with it. 

 
6.2.6  Door Stewarding.   
 The Board, taking into account the licensing objectives of preventing crime and 

disorder, securing public safety and preventing public nuisance may consider the 
provision of door stewards appropriate depending on the nature of activities and 
events carried on at licensed premises and would support the use of Security 
Industry accredited stewards for this purpose. Whether or not door stewards are 
required and, if so, the number of stewards, the occasions and hours they must 
be present will be determined according to the merits of each individual 
application. 

 
6.3 Adult Entertainment.   
 Any application for premises licence proposing to include adult entertainment in its 

operating plan will be considered on an individual basis.  The Board will expect applicants 
to give consideration to the licensing objectives and to ensure that where such adult 
entertainment provision is available there will be stringent measures in place to prevent 
commercial sexual exploitation.  

 (Note: The Air Weapons and Licensing (Scotland) Act 2015 has from 26 April 2019 
amended the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982 to introduce a discretionary power 
for Local Authorities in Scotland to licence Sexual Entertainment Venues within their 
individual areas. Accordingly on 25 March 2021, Scottish Borders Council adopted a 
resolution to licence Sexual Entertainment Venues and on 27 October 2022 introduced 
a Sexual Entertainment Policy.  As a consequence, any premises operating plan 
including adult entertainment will be restricted to a maximum of three such occasions a 
year, otherwise a separate Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence may be required. In 

Page 57



 

10 

 

terms of the Council’s policy, the Council determined that the number of Sexual 
Entertainment venues permitted in the Scottish Borders area would be nil.)     

  
 
7. LICENSED HOURS AND EXTENDED HOURS 
 

7.1 Whilst the Act removes set permitted hours for on sales and leaves applicants to decide 
what is appropriate to include in the operating plan, the Board recognises the impact 
licensing hours have in an area. They will consider the individual requirements of 
applicants and premises and how such hours may impact on a particular area. 

 
7.2 Off sale hours may only be permitted between the hours of 10.00am and 10.00pm and 

the Board may restrict off sale hours where it is satisfied that any of the licensing 
objectives may not be met. Licence holders should be aware that any off sale should be 
off the premises within 15 minutes of the terminal hour.  The Board must refuse any 
application for off sales hours outwith the permitted times. 

 
7.3 As far as on sale hours are concerned, the Board will not normally grant applications for 

more than 14 hours in any 24 hour period. Where there is no significant entertainment 
and alcohol consumption is the principal activity, hours should not extend beyond 
12.00midnight Sunday to Wednesday and 1.00am Thursday to Saturday, with a 
commencement time of 11.00am seven days a week.  

 
7.4 Applicants for on sale licensed premises with an off sale facility should be aware that the 

off sale hours on the licence cannot extend either prior to 10.00am or after 10.00pm.  
They should also be aware that this applies to customers who purchase a drink intended 
as an on sale and subsequently carry it off the licensed premises. 

 
7.5 Where applicants intend to apply for any core on sale hours outwith those detailed in 7.3 

above, they will be expected to show how any activity to be carried out on the premises 
is consistent with the licensing objectives.  Any inclusion of seasonal variations should 
state precise fixed dates and times. 

 
 In relation to festive seasonal hours for inclusion within the premises operating plan, the 

Board will normally consider acceptable extension of on sale core hours until 1.00am on 
Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, Boxing Day, New Years Eve and New Years Day. 

 
7.6 While all applications will be subject to the Mandatory Conditions under the Act, attached 

as Appendices 4 and 5, the Board reserves the right to apply further conditions where it 
sees fit in order to promote one or more of the licensing objectives or otherwise give 
effect to the terms of its Policy Statement or the provisions of the Act. Examples of 
additional conditions which may be considered appropriate are attached as Appendix 7. 

 
7.7 It is acknowledged that there will be events and occasions which cannot be catered for 

or anticipated within the core hours of an operating plan and as such the Board will 
consider applications for Extended Hours on their individual merits in relation to its policy 
at 7.3 above and the licensing objectives. 

 
7.8 Late Hours.  Applicants should be aware of the additional mandatory conditions as 

attached at Appendix 5, applied to late opening premises (after 1.00am) and the Board 
reserves the right to consider further additional conditions to promote the licensing 
objectives. In order to comply with the licensing objective of securing public safety. 
Premises with late hours trading in their operating plans should have in place a policy 
with a view to ensuring as far as possible the safety of staff at the conclusion of licensing 
hours.  

 

Page 58



 

11 

 

 The Board will only consider applications for on sale core hours after 1.00am from 
specific late night venues, where substantial live entertainment is being provided and the 
alcohol sold is intended as being ancillary to that entertainment.   

  
 The Board is, however, aware of the variety of events, functions and festivals which occur 

in the Scottish Borders and the importance of these to the area.  With this in mind they 
will consider applications for occasional licences and extensions for times outwith normal 
hours and will in appropriate circumstances grant such applications.  

 
 The Board does not consider that all events connected with historic common ridings and 

summer festivals should automatically be seen as justification for an occasional licence 
or to extend licensed hours. Applicants will require to specify how their application is 
connected to the local common riding or festival event and the Board will consider each 
on its individual merits in relation to the licensing objectives.    

 
 If granting an application for occasional licence or extended hours which includes the 

late hours period, the Board will consider attaching some or all of the additional or late 
hours conditions as set out in appendices 4 and 5 as appropriate. In order to comply with 
the licensing objective of securing public safety, applicants applying for an occasional 
licence with late hours trading should have a policy in place with a view to ensuring as 
far as possible the security of staff at the conclusion of licensing hours.  

 
 Any licensees operating in the late hours period will be expected to dispense drinks in 

plastic or toughened vessels.    
 

 
8. HOME DELIVERIES/REMOTE SALES 

 
8.1 The Board expects that premises which intend to provide home deliveries of alcohol must 

specify this activity in their operating plan and provide details of how this will operate with 
particular regard to the licensing objectives.  These details should include the hours of 
delivery, the steps taken to identify the age of the person ordering and receiving including 
Challenge 25, payment arrangements, and arrangements to protect the safety of those 
delivering alcohol. 

 
8.2 Delivery staff must have undertaken the mandatory two hours staff training to the same 

level as those employed in Licensed Premises and records maintained of that training. 
 
8.3 Orders for delivery of alcohol can only be taken during the off sale core times stipulated 

in the Premises Licence.  Deliveries may take place outwith these times but not between 
midnight and 6.00am.    

 
 
9. MEMBERS CLUBS 

9.1 Members Clubs are required to be licensed in the same way as any other premises 
selling alcohol, they are however exempt from some provisions of the Act.  Appendix 8 
refers. 

 
9.2 Members Clubs will be expected to abide by the rules governing membership and the 

introduction of non-members to the premises.  They are required to have an appropriate 
Constitution detailing category of membership and which adequately reflects Members 
Club status, along with all the requirements contained in Appendix 9.  The operating plan 
for a Members Club should also reflect its status, including sign in provisions and the 
Board expects Members Clubs to thereafter abide by the terms of such operating plan.  

 
9.3 Any Members Club seeking to vary its licence to remove Members Club status should 

be aware that before consideration of any such variation the Board will require evidence 

Page 59



 

12 

 

of this having been agreed by the membership, i.e. a certified copy of approved minute 
from AGM or EGM showing the membership decision to such a variation.   

 
It should be noted, that neither the Board nor any licensing support staff can provide 
legal advice in relation to applications and applicants should seek independent legal 
advice prior to submission of an application.  
 
 

10. GARAGES  
 

10.1  The Act excludes some premises from authorising the sale of alcohol including premises 
or parts of premises used as a garage. Such premises are used as a garage if there is: 

 

• sale by retail of petrol or derv (diesel); 

• the sale of motor vehicles; or 

• the maintenance of motor vehicles.  
 

However, where those premises or parts of premises are used for sale by retail of petrol 
or derv, alcohol may be authorised to be sold in some circumstances.  Alcohol may be 
sold where the Board determines that in relation to such premises, persons resident in 
the locality are, or are likely to become, reliant to a significant extent on the premises as 
the principal source of (a) petrol or derv, or (b) groceries.  

 
10.2  For any application in respect of a garage premises in its area, the Board will require the 

applicant to provide sufficient information  to satisfy it that the premises meets the criteria 
to permit the authorised sale of alcohol. 

 
 
11. OUTSIDE DRINKING AREAS 
 

11.1 Where applicants for a premises licence propose within their operating plan to provide 
an outside drinking area or areas, such area(s) must be included within the layout plan 
for the premises and clearly indicated as such.   

 
11.2 The off sale terminal hour is 10.00pm and the Board considers this should be the terminal 

hour for the operation of any outside drinking area in order to ensure that the licensing 
objective of preventing public nuisance is met.  The Board will only grant any applications 
to include outside area(s) in a Premises Licence where it is satisfied that there is no 
likelihood of nuisance being caused to neighbours.  Although patrons may still use 
outside areas after 10.00pm, staff should ensure that noise is kept to a minimum, clear 
signage should be displayed to that effect and policies should be in place to promote 
this.  The Licensing Board will expect the applicant to show that he has control of any 
outside area to ensure that the licensing objectives are met. 

 
11.3 Sufficient ashtrays and other litter receptacles are to be provided in the outdoor areas 

which are excluded from the definition of “no smoking premises” as prescribed in the 
Prohibition of Smoking in Certain Premises (Scotland) Regulations 2006. 

 
 
12. OCCASIONAL LICENCES 
 

12.1 An Occasional Licence allows for the sale of alcohol on unlicensed premises. There 
are periods when a large number of occasional licences are in force, particularly during 
common riding and summer festival events which result in an increase of alcohol 
availability and the Board recognises the need to consider the impact of such 
applications in relation to the licensing objectives.  The Board will generally look for the 
applicant to demonstrate that an occasional licence application is for a specific event. 

Page 60



 

13 

 

The Board accepts many fundraising and community events benefit from the granting 
of an occasional licence but would expect any organisation considering applying, to 
take into account whether or not it is appropriate to have the sale of alcohol forming a 
normal part of the event with particular regard to the Protecting Children and Young 
Persons from Harm objective.  This should be particularly considered for child centred 
events and the Board may require to see written policies evidencing the measures in 
place to meet the Protecting Children and Young Persons from Harm objective. A child 
centred event is one which is primarily for the entertainment of children or young 
persons. 

 

12.2 The Board will not normally consider an application for occasional licence which relates 
to any premises in respect of which a Premises Licence is in existence but is currently 
suspended unless exceptional circumstances can be evidenced. 

  
12.3 A Members Club can also apply for an Occasional Licence to authorise the sale of 

alcohol on their premises for events where access is not restricted to its Club Members 
and their signed in guests.   

 
12.4 An application for an Occasional Licence may be made by any of the following: 

 

•  the holder of a Premises Licence (including a Members Club for events to be 
held on the Club premises); 

•  the holder of a Personal Licence; or  

•  a representative of any Voluntary Organisation (for events or fundraising 
events connected to the activities of the organisation).  

 
12.5 The holder of a Premises Licence or a Personal Licence may make an unlimited 

number of applications. However, there are restrictions on the number of applications 
a Voluntary Organisation and a Members Club can make in any period of 12 months.   
The Board defines the 12 month period as 1 January to 31 December.  Further 
guidance on this is available from the Licensing Unit contactable as detailed at 1.9 
above.   

 
12.6 The Board will expect that applicants will be able to evidence that the following 

factors have been considered when organising their event: 
 

➢ The design and layout of the premises  
➢ The location, availability and size of exits including emergency exits 
➢ The provision of adequate internal and external lighting   
➢ The nature of the premises or event 
➢ The nature of the activities being provided  
➢ The provision or removal of temporary structures such as a stage or furniture 
➢ The number of staff available to supervise customers both ordinarily and in 

the event of an emergency 
➢ The profile of the customers  
➢ The attendance of customers with disabilities 
➢ The provision of suitable and sufficient accessible toilet facilities 
➢ The nature and provision of facilities for ventilation 
➢ The accessibility of the event premises for emergency services 

 
  

12.7  Applications for Occasional Licence can be made for one-off or longer duration events, 
but can only last up to a maximum of 14 days.  

 
12.8 To allow time for consultation with Police Scotland, the Licensing Standards 

Enforcement Officer and for objections or representations to be considered, 
applications should be submitted as far in advance as possible, and not later than 42 

Page 61



 

14 

 

days before the event takes place.  It is recognised that in some circumstances 
applications will be submitted at short notice and the Board will endeavour to process 
these if possible but organisers should be aware that late submission may result in a 
request for written reasons for late lodgement and a licence not being granted due to 
lack of time to fully assess the impact on the licensing objectives.   Provided there are 
no adverse reports from Police Scotland, Licensing Standards Enforcement Officers or 
any objections or representations, the Board must grant the application.  Failing this, 
the Board must hold a hearing to determine the application at which it may grant the 
licence as applied for, grant the licence with conditions or refuse the licence, all as 
detailed in Section 59 of the Act.  The Conditions attached to all Occasional Licences 
are attached as Appendix 6 and the Board may impose additional conditions as it 
determines appropriate to promote the licensing objectives. Some examples of which 
are attached as Appendix 7. 

 
12.9 With regard to the commencement and terminal hours for the sale of alcohol in 

connection with any Occasional Licence application, refer to 7.2 and 7.3 above.   
 
12.10 The provision of live music, discos or karaoke could cause nuisance and are often 

elements of Occasional Licences.  Applicants will therefore be required where they 
wish to have these activities to give details of how they will take reasonable steps to 
prevent noise nuisance, to ensure that there will be no noise from amplified and non-
amplified music, singing or speech sourced from licensed premises audible in any 
adjoining or neighbouring property.  (This may include installation of a sound limiter, 
sound proofing, keeping doors and windows closed and asking patrons to leave quickly 
and quietly at the end of the evening.)  If required, advice is available from Scottish 
Borders Council’s Environmental Health section.  

 
12.11  The Board expects any licensee or organisation catering for an event to have written 

policies in place, with an undertaking to abide by them, which show how the licensing 
objectives will be met.  These policies should relate to and be appropriate to the 
particular event, as follows:  

(a) Adequate and appropriate stewarding to be in place. 
(b) The use of toughened glass or plastic drinking vessels, where appropriate 
(c) An age identification/verification scheme should be detailed. 
(d) An undertaking that there will be full compliance with any guidance or advice from 

the Licensing Standards Enforcement Officer, Police Scotland, the Fire and 
Rescue Service and any other appropriate authority. 

(e) Details of measures put in place or steps taken to lessen the chance of noise 
nuisance from any entertainment should be detailed.   

(f) Any further policies relating to the event should be shown under the appropriate 
licensing objective heading.  If children or young persons are to be present in 
licensed areas then particular attention and detail should be given to showing how 
they will be protected from harm.   

 
12.12 The Board is concerned to ensure that the availability of Occasional Licences as a short 

term means of licensing premises is not abused.  Where repeated occasional licence 
applications are submitted in respect of premises where it considers that insufficient 
measures as detailed in 12.10 above can be taken and there are concerns regarding 
the suitability of the premises having regard to any of the licensing objectives, the Board 
will refuse these. 

 
 General Note:  In relation to events covered by an occasional licence, applicants should also be aware 

that they may require a Public Entertainment and/or Late Hours Catering Licence issued by Scottish 
Borders Council, under the Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982. Clarification should be sought from 
the Licensing Unit as detailed in 1.9 above.   

 
 

Page 62



 

15 

 

13.    IRRESPONSIBLE PROMOTIONS 
 

13.1 It is important that licensees and their staff are aware that some promotions may be 
irresponsible to ensure they do not breach any of the mandatory conditions of any 
Premises or Occasional Licence.   

 
13.2 While the offering of a free alcoholic drink in connection with the purchase of another 

drink is categorised in the list of irresponsible promotions, the Board takes the view that 
advertising alcoholic drinks on licensed premises as being free as a result of any 
purchase or activity is inconsistent with the licensing objective of protecting and 
improving public health.  While the inclusion of a bottle or glass of wine for example in 
the cost of a meal or meals has been common practice this should not be highlighted 
as being free and should not be used as a means to entice patrons to consume alcohol 
they may not have otherwise intended to.  The price quoted should be shown as being 
inclusive of the alcoholic drink with non-alcoholic alternatives being available.  There 
should be no advertising of free alcoholic drinks as a result of attendance at licensed 
premises for any purpose such as a sporting event or the scoring of a goal or suchlike. 

 
 
14. PERSONAL LICENCES 
 

14.1 All premises licences, with the exception of Members Clubs, require a Designated 
Premises Manager who must be the holder of a Personal Licence. Whilst all alcohol 
sales require to be authorised by a Personal Licence holder, the Act does not require 
the Personal Licence holder to be present on the premises when the sale is made 

 
14.2 When considering an application for a Personal Licence, the Licensing Board will 

consult with Police Scotland and the Licensing Standards Enforcement Officer to 
ascertain whether the applicant is fit and proper to hold a licence.  Police Scotland will 
also provide information of convictions for any relevant offences detailed in SSI 2007 
No. 513, which can be accessed on the Office of Public Sector Information website at 
www.legislation.gov.uk.  Where any representation is received from Police Scotland or 
the Licensing Standards Enforcement Officer the Board will consider whether the 
application should be granted or refused under the Act.  In making a decision, the Board 
will have regard to the seriousness and age of the conviction together with any other 
circumstances it considers to be relevant. 

 
14.3 The Licensing Board expects all Personal Licence holders to carry out their duties in a 

manner which is consistent with the promotion of the licensing objectives.   Where a 
review of a Premises Licence has uncovered conduct on the part of the Personal 
Licence holder which is inconsistent with one or more of the licensing objectives, a 
Personal Licence hearing may be required.   At the conclusion of any such hearing,   
the Licensing Board may, if satisfied that it is necessary to do so for the purposes of 
any of the licensing objectives: revoke the Personal Licence; suspend the Personal 
Licence for an agreed period; or endorse the Personal Licence.  

 
 
15.  DESIGNATED PREMISES MANAGERS 
 

15.1 The Board expects that a Designated Premises Manager will take an active role in the 
day to day management of the premises and in circumstances where this is not the 
case or a Designated Premises Manager is absent for long periods of time on a regular 
basis, the Board expects that the Premises Licence holder will take steps to review the 
management arrangements of the premises to ensure adequate measures are in place 
for authorisation of alcohol sales. Where it considers it appropriate for the purposes of 
any of the licensing objectives, the Board may apply a condition requiring a Personal 
Licence holder to be present at all times. 

Page 63

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/


 

16 

 

 
 
16.  ANNUAL FEES 
 

16.1 Where a premises licence is in effect or is suspended, the holder of that licence must 
make payment of an annual fee.  First annual fees are due 30 days after the date on 
which the licence takes effect. Subsequent annual fees are due on 1 October each 
year.  The Licensing Board has a statutory duty to give notice to Premises Licence 
holders of the amount of fee payable not later than 30 days before the date on which 
the fee is due.  The Licensing Board will not issue invoices and the Premises Licence 
holder is responsible for ensuring that payment is made.    Payment of the annual fee 
is a mandatory condition attached to the Premise Licence and therefore non-payment 
is a breach of that condition.  Non-payment of the annual fee may result in an 
application to the Board for Premises Licence review and the Board, if satisfied that a 
ground for review exists, may take any of the following actions: 

 
1.  Issue a written warning; 
2.  Make a Variation of the Premises Licence; 
3.  Suspend the Premises Licence or 
4.  Revoke the Premises Licence. 

 
16.2 Where a Premises Licence has been suspended following application for review on the 

grounds of non-payment the Board may consider revocation of the Premises Licence 
in the event that payment remains outstanding for a period in excess of twelve months.   

 
 
17. LICENSING STANDARDS AND ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS 
 

17.1 The Act requires that the Council employ Licensing Standards and Enforcement 
Officers.  The Board recognises the importance of the role within the Act and as officers 
of Scottish Borders Council will be provided with the relevant training to allow them to 
carry out their role.   

 
17.2 The role of a Licensing Standards and Enforcement Officer involves the following: 

 Guidance  A Licensing Standards and Enforcement Officer may provide the licensed 
trade, the public and any other interested party with information and guidance 
concerning the operation of the Act in the Board’s area.  The Act requires that Licensing 
Standards Enforcement Officers be consulted as part of the process for determining 
applications. Therefore, they may not give legal advice or make applications or 
objections on behalf of any party. 

 
Mediation Where appropriate, a Licensing Standards and Enforcement Officer will be 
expected to mediate between the public, the licensed trade and any other interested 
party in order to resolve any issues without involving the Licensing Board. 
 
Compliance The regulatory role of a Licensing Standards and Enforcement Officer is 
to ensure that licensees comply with their Premises Licence or Occasional Licence and 
the licensing legislation. 
 

17.3 The Licensing Standards and Enforcement Officers are contactable through the 
Licensing Unit as detailed in 1.9 above.   

Page 64



 

17 

 

  
 
 

1.  
APPENDIX 1  

 

ORGANISATION CONTACT TELEPHONE AND EMAIL ADDRESS WEBSITE 

SBC Licensing 
Contact them for advice on 
licenses and permits 

01835 826662 

Liquorandlicensing@scotborders.gov.uk 

 

https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20025/lice
nsing 
 

Police Scotland Licensing Officers 
 

lothianscotborderslicensingscotborders@scotland.police.uk 
 

http://www.scotland.police.uk/your-
community/the-lothians-and-scottish-borders/ 

 

SBC Planning 0300 100 1800  

prs@scotborders.gov.uk 
 

https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/site_search/res
ults/?q=planning#Information 

 

SBC Building Standards  0300 100 1800 

BuildingStandardReg@scotborders.gov.uk 
 

https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/site_search/res
ults/?q=Building+Control#Information 

 

SBC Environmental Health  
 

0300 100 1800 

PLACEhealth@scotborders.gov.uk 
 

https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/site_search/res
ults/?q=Environmental+Health#Information 
 

SBC Trading standards 
 

0300 100 1800 

PLACEhealth@scotborders.gov.uk 

 

https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/site_search/res
ults/?q=trading+standards 

 

  

Page 65

mailto:Liquorandlicensing@scotborders.gov.uk
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20025/licensing
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20025/licensing
mailto:lothianscotborderslicensingscotborders@scotland.police.uk
http://www.scotland.police.uk/your-community/the-lothians-and-scottish-borders/
http://www.scotland.police.uk/your-community/the-lothians-and-scottish-borders/
mailto:prs@scotborders.gov.uk
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/site_search/results/?q=planning#Information
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/site_search/results/?q=planning#Information
mailto:BuildingStandardReg@scotborders.gov.uk
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/site_search/results/?q=Building+Control#Information
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/site_search/results/?q=Building+Control#Information
mailto:PLACEhealth@scotborders.gov.uk
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/site_search/results/?q=Environmental+Health#Information
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/site_search/results/?q=Environmental+Health#Information
mailto:PLACEtradingstandards@scotborders.gov.uk
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/site_search/results/?q=trading+standards
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/site_search/results/?q=trading+standards


 

18 

 

Scottish Fire and Rescue Service 
143 Croft Street 
Galashiels 
TD1 3BS 

 
01896 758326 

www.firescotland.gov.uk  

Security Industry Authority (SIA) 
PO Box 49768 
London 
WC1V 6WY 

 www.services.sia.homeoffice.gov.uk  

Gambling Commission  
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/home.aspx 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 66

http://www.firescotland.gov.uk/
http://www.services.sia.homeoffice.gov.uk/
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/home.aspx


 

                              19 

APPENDIX 2  

 
 

PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLOWED AT HEARINGS 
 

 
 
REPRESENTATION AT THE HEARING 
 
Parties may be represented if they so wish at a hearing.  
 
Before reaching a final decision, the Licensing Board will have regard to the licensing objectives, its 
Licensing Policy Statement and all the evidence and submissions presented to it.  It may retire to 
consider the evidence and parties will be invited to return when it is reconvened to give its decision. 
A letter will be sent to the applicant/licenceholder confirming the decision after the hearing. 
 
In the event that the applicant/licenceholder fails to attend and in the absence of any representative, 
the Licensing Board will make a decision on whether or not to continue with the hearing having 
regard to the advice of the legal adviser and any relevant information made available by officers. 
 
*NOTE:   BOTH PARTIES HAVE THE RIGHT TO SUBMIT WRITTEN COMMENTS ONLY AND 
RELY ON THESE 
 
PROCEDURE AT HEARING  
 
1 The legal adviser to the Licensing Board will: 
 

• Clarify who the parties are 

• explain the general format the hearing will take, advise in which order the parties will be 
invited to speak and at what stage opportunities for questions/clarification of matters will be 
appropriate   

•  confirm that all parties are in agreement with the format outlined 

•  advise all present that all questions or comments should be addressed through the 
Convener 

 
2. The Licensing Team Leader will give a brief outline of the matter to be considered and the 

reason it has been referred to the Licensing Board. 
 
3 The Convener will invite anyone making an objection or representation or his/her 

representative to present his/her objection/representation.*  
 
4. The Convener will invite questions to the objector/person making representation from: 

 (a) Board members 
 (b) the applicant/licenceholder or their representative   
 
5. The Convener will invite the applicant/licenceholder or their representative to present their 

case in answer to the objection(s)/representation(s).*  
 
6. The Convener will invite questions to the applicant/licenceholder from: 

(a) Board Members 
(b) the objector(s)/person(s) making representation 

 
7. The legal adviser to the Licensing Board will summarise the options for disposal of the matter 

with reference to the Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005 and offer Members the opportunity to take 
legal advice on any matters raised.  

 

Page 67



 

                              20 

8. The Convener will clarify with all present that they have no further questions or comments to 
make before requesting that the objector(s)/anyone making a representation and the 
applicant/licenceholder or their representative make any final points regarding the matters 
discussed. 

 
9. The objector(s)/anyone making a representation will be asked if they have anything else to say 

before the Licensing Board makes its decision. 
 

10. The applicant/licenceholder will be asked if they have anything else to say before the Licensing 
Board makes its decision.  

 
11. The Licensing Board may seek legal advice from the legal adviser present before retiring to 

consider matters or moving to determine the matter. 
 
12. The Convener will deliver the Licensing Board’s decision. 
 

 
 
OPTIONS, CONDITIONS FOR LICENCES GRANTED AND APPEALS 
 
The Licensing Board will make a decision, attach any conditions and advise of the appeal process 
having regard to the relevant sections of the Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005. 

Page 68



 

                              21 

APPENDIX 3 
 

SCOTTISH BORDERS LICENSING BOARD 
LICENSING (SCOTLAND) ACT 2005 

 
Scheme of Delegation adopted by the Scottish Borders Licensing Board  

at their meeting held on 22 June 2012 
 

By virtue of the powers conferred on us by the Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005 (“the 2005 Act “) we 
hereby make this scheme of delegation. 
 
1 The following are not delegated and are reserved to the Board to be made at a meeting 

arranged by the Clerk: 
 
 1.1 (a) determining the Board’s policy for the purposes of a licensing policy statement or 

supplementary licensing policy statement. 
  (b) determining, for the purposes of any such statement, whether there is 

overprovision of licensed premises, or licensed premises of any particular 
description, in any locality 

(c) determining a premises licence application 
(d) determining a premises licence variation application where the variation sought is 

not a minor variation 
(e) determining an application for the transfer of a premises licence where the 

applicant has been convicted of a relevant offence or a foreign offence 
(f) determining: 

(i) a personal licence application, or 
(ii) a personal licence renewal application 

   where the applicant has been convicted of a relevant offence or a foreign offence 
(g) conducting a hearing under the 2005 Act (including taking any of the steps 

mentioned in paragraph 1.2  below at, or as a result of, the hearing) 
(h) making a closure order 
(i) refusing an application for confirmation of a provisional premises licence 

 
1.2 The steps referred to in paragraph 1.1(g) above are: 

 
(a) at a review hearing in respect of a premises licence: 

(i) issuing a written warning to the licence holder 
 (ii) revoking or suspending the licence, or 
(iii) making a variation of the licence, or 

(b) making an order revoking, suspending or endorsing a Personal Licence.  
 
 1.3 A Licensing Board may delegate to the Clerk of the Board the function of granting an 

occasional licence application only where there is no notice of objection or 
representations in relation to the application, or no notice from the appropriate Chief 
Constable or any report from the Licensing Standards Officer recommending refusal of 
the application.  

 
2 DELEGATION TO THE CLERK OR DEPUTE CLERK OF THE LICENSING BOARD 
 

Decisions on the following matters are delegated to the Clerk or Depute Clerk or any nominated 
staff: 
References to section in the following paragraph are references to sections of the 2005 Act, 
except where otherwise stated. 
 
2.1 Any application for a minor variation of Premises Licence (Section 29). 

 
2.2 Any application for variation to substitute a new Premises Manager – where the applicant 

has not been convicted of any relevant or foreign offence (Sections 31 and 54). 

Page 69



 

                              22 

 
2.3 Any application to transfer a Premises Licence – where the transferee has not been 

convicted of any relevant or foreign offence (Sections 33 to 35). 
 

2.4 Any application for confirmation of a provisional Premises Licence – where no variation 
(other than a minor variation) has been made to the operating plan or layout plan for the 
premises to which the licence relates since the provisional licence was issued or since 
a variation of the provisional Premises Licence was granted (Section 46). 

 
2.5 Any application for an occasional licence – where no objections or representations have 

been received, nor a notice recommending refusal from the Chief Constable or any 
report from the Licensing Standards Officer recommending refusal (Sections 56 to 61). 

 
2.6 Any application for extended hours – where no objections or representations have been 

received, nor a notice recommending refusal from the Chief Constable or any report from 
the Licensing Standards Officer recommending refusal (Sections 68 to 70). 

 
2.7 The determination in terms of Section 70(2) of the 2005  Act as to whether or not the 

Licensing Board will hold a hearing to determine an application for extended hours where 
an objection, representation or a notice recommending refusal from the Chief Constable 
or a report from the Licensing Standards Officer recommending refusal has been 
received. 

 
2.8 Where a decision has been taken not to hold a hearing in terms of Section 70(2) of the 

Act, the determination of the application. 
 

2.9 Any application for a Personal Licence or renewal of a Personal Licence where the 
applicant has not been convicted of a relevant or foreign offence (Section 74). 

 
2.10 Although an application or decision may fall within the above categories, the Clerk of the 

Board or any member of staff appointed by the Clerk, may decline to exercise their 
delegated power in which case the matter will be referred to the Board.  

Page 70



 

                              23 

 
APPENDIX 4 

 

PREMISES LICENCES - MANDATORY CONDITIONS  
(APPLICABLE FROM 1 MAY 2018) 

 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1.   In this schedule, “the premises” means, in relation to any premises licence, the premises 

specified in the licence. 
 
 
Compliance with the operating plan 
 
2 (1)  Alcohol is to be sold on the premises only in accordance with the operating plan 

contained in the licence.  
 

 (2)  Nothing in sub-paragraph (1) is to be read as preventing or restricting the doing of 
anything referred to in section 63(2).  

 
3. Any other activity to be carried on in the premises is to be carried on only in accordance with 

the operating plan contained in the licence. 
 
 
The premises manager 
 
4 (1)  Alcohol is not to be sold on the premises at any time when: 
 
  (a) there is no premises manager in respect of the premises  
  (b) the premises manager does not hold a personal licence  
  (c) the personal licence held by the premises manager is suspended; or  
  (d) the licensing qualification held by the premises manager is not the appropriate  

 licensing qualification in relation to the premises  
 
 (2) In sub-paragraph (1), “appropriate licensing qualification” in relation to any licensed 

premises means any licensing qualification prescribed as such in relation to licensed 
premises of that description in regulations under section 91(2)(d).  

 
 (3) Nothing in sub-paragraph (1) or paragraph 5 is to be read as requiring the premises 

manager to be present on the premises at the time any sale of alcohol is made.  
 
 
Authorisation of sales of alcohol 
 
5. Every sale of alcohol made on the premises must be authorised (whether generally or 

specifically) by: 
 
 (a)  the premises manager; or  
 (b) another person who holds a personal licence 
 
 
Training of staff 
 
6 (1)  No person (other than a person who holds a personal licence) is to work in the 

premises in the capacity mentioned in sub-paragraph (2) unless that person has 
complied with such requirements as to the training of staff as may be prescribed for 
the purposes of this paragraph.  

Page 71



 

                              24 

 
 (2) That is a capacity (whether paid or unpaid) which involves the person: 
 
 (a)  making sales of alcohol; or  
 (b)  where alcohol is sold on the premises for consumption on the premises, serving 

such alcohol to any person. 
 
 (2A) At any time when a person (other than a person who holds a personal licence) is 

working in the premises in a capacity mentioned in sub-paragraph (2), there must be 
kept on the premises a training record which relates to that person and is in the form 
set out in the Schedule to the Licensing (Mandatory Conditions No. 2) (Scotland) 
Regulations 2007. 

 
 (2B) A record kept on the premises under sub-paragraph (2A) must be produced to a 

Licensing Standards Officer on request. 
 
 (3) Regulations under sub-paragraph (1) prescribing training requirements may, in 

particular: 
 
 (a) provide for the accreditation by the Scottish Ministers of: 
 
  (i) courses of training; and  
  (ii) persons providing such courses  
 
  for the purposes of the regulations 
   
 (b) prescribe different training requirements in relation to different descriptions of 

persons. 
 (c) require that any person providing training or any particular description of training 

in accordance with the regulations hold a personal licence or such other 
qualification as may be prescribed in the regulations; and  

 (d) require training to be undergone again at such intervals as may be prescribed in 
the regulations.  

 
 
Minimum price of alcohol 
 
6A (1) Alcohol must not be sold on the premises at a price below its minimum price. 
 
 (2) Where alcohol is supplied together with other products or services for a single price, 

sub-paragraph (1) applies as if the alcohol were supplied on its own for that price. 
 
 (3) The minimum price of alcohol is to be calculated according to the following formula: 

  MPU x S x V x 100  

  where: 

   MPU is the minimum price per unit 
   S is the strength of the alcohol; and 
   V is the volume of the alcohol in litres 
 
 (4) The Scottish Ministers have specified by order that the minimum price per unit is 50 

pence. 
 
 (5)  For the purposes of sub-paragraph (3), where: 
  

(a) the alcohol is contained in a bottle or other container;  and 
(b) the bottle or other container is marked or labelled in accordance with the Food 

Information (Scotland) Regulations 2014(a) 

Page 72



 

                              25 

 
the strength is taken to be the alcoholic strength by volume as indicated by the mark 
or label. 

   
 
Minimum price of packages containing more than one alcoholic product 
  
6B (1) A package containing two or more alcoholic products (whether of the same of different 

kinds) may only be sold on the premises at a price equal to or greater than the sum 
of the prices at which each alcoholic product is for sale on the premises. 

 
 (2) Sub-paragraph (1) applies: 
 
 (a) only where each of the alcoholic products is for sale on the premises separately, 

 and 
 (b) regardless of whether or not the package also contains any item which is not an  

alcoholic product. 
 

(3) In this paragraph, "alcoholic product" means a product containing alcohol and     
includes the container in which alcohol is for sale. 

 
 
Pricing of alcohol 
 
7. Where the price at which any alcohol sold on the premises for consumption on the premises 

is varied: 
 
 (a) the variation (referred to in this paragraph as “the earlier price variation”) may be 

brought into effect only at the beginning of a period of licensed hours, and  
 (b) no further variation of the price at which that or any other alcohol is sold on the 

premises for consumption on the premises may be brought into effect before the 
expiry of the period of 72 hours beginning with the coming into effect of the earlier 
price variation.  

 
 
Off-sales: variation of pricing of alcoholic drinks 
 
7(A) Where the price at which any alcohol sold on the premises for consumption off the premises 

is varied: 
 

 (a) the variation (referred to in this paragraph as "the earlier price variation") may be 
brought into effect only at the beginning of a period of licensing hours, and 

 
 (b) no further variation in the price at which that alcohol is sold on the premises may be 

brought into effect before the expiry of the period of 72 hours beginning with the 
coming into effect of the earlier price variation. 

 
 
Irresponsible drinks promotions 
 
8 (1)  An irresponsible drinks promotion must not be carried on in or in connection with the 

premises.  
 
 (2) Subject to sub-paragraph (3), a drinks promotion is irresponsible if it:  
 
 (a)  relates specifically to an alcoholic drink likely to appeal largely to persons under 

the age of 18,  

Page 73



 

                              26 

 (b) involves the supply of an alcoholic drink free of charge or at a reduced price on 
the purchase of one or more drinks (whether or not alcoholic drinks),  

 (c) involves the supply free of charge or at a reduced price of one or more extra 
measures of an alcoholic drink on the purchase of one or more measures of the 
drink,  

 (d) involves the supply of unlimited amounts of alcohol for a fixed charge (including 
any charge for entry to the premises),  

 (e) encourages, or seeks to encourage, a person to buy or consume a larger 
measure of alcohol than the person had otherwise intended to buy or consume,  

 (f) is based on the strength of any alcohol,  
 (g) rewards or encourages, or seeks to reward or encourage, drinking alcohol 

quickly, or  
 (h) offers alcohol as a reward or prize, unless the alcohol is in a sealed container 

and consumed off the premises.  
   
 (3)  Paragraphs (c) to (e) of sub-paragraph (2) apply only to a drinks promotion carried on 

in relation to alcohol sold for consumption on the premises. 
 
 (4)  The Scottish Ministers may by regulations modify sub-paragraph (2) or (3) so as to: 
 
 (a) add further descriptions of drinks promotions  
 (b) modify any of the descriptions of drinks promotions for the time being listed in it; 

or  
 (c) extend or restrict the application of any of those descriptions of drinks 

promotions.  
 
 (5)  In this paragraph, “drinks promotion” means, in relation to any premises, any activity 

which promotes, or seeks to promote, the buying or consumption of any alcohol on 
the premises.  

 
 
Provision of non-alcoholic drinks 
 
9 (1)  The conditions specified in this paragraph apply only to the extent that the premises 

licence authorises the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises.  
   
 (2)  Tap water fit for drinking must be provided free of charge on request.  
   
 (3) Other non-alcoholic drinks must be available for purchase at a reasonable price.  

 
 
Age verification policy 

 
9(A) (1) There must be an age verification policy in relation to the sale of alcohol on the 

 premises. 
 
 (2) An "age verification policy" is a policy that steps are to be taken to establish the age 

of a person attempting to buy alcohol on the premises ("the customer") if it appears 
to the person selling the alcohol that the customer may be less than 25 years of age 
(or such older age as may be specified in the policy). 

 
 (3) The condition specified in this paragraph does not apply in relation to any sale of 

alcohol which takes place on the premises merely by virtue of being treated, by 
section 139, as taking place on the premises.  

 
 
Payment of annual or recurring fees 
   

Page 74



 

                              27 

10 (1)  The condition specified in sub-paragraph (2) applies only in relation to a premises 
licence in respect of which an annual or other recurring fee is to be paid by virtue of 
regulations under section 136(1).  

   
 (2)  The fee must be paid as required by the regulations. 
  
 
Notices – admission of persons under 18 
 
11 (1)  The condition specified in this paragraph applies only in the case of premises on 

which alcohol is sold for consumption on the premises. 
 
 
 (2) There is to be displayed so that it is reasonably visible to customers entering the 

premises a sign of at least A4 size which– 
  
 (a) states that persons under the age of 18 are not permitted on the premises; or 
 (b) states that such persons are permitted on the premises or on such parts of the 

premises as are specified on the sign. 
 
 
Baby changing facilities 
 
12 (1)  The condition specified in this paragraph applies only in the case of premises: 
 
 (a) which are not: 
 (i) a vehicle; 
 (ii) a vessel; 
 (iii) a moveable structure; or 
 (iv) used wholly or mainly for the purposes referred to in section 125(1);   
 (b) on which alcohol is sold for consumption on the premises; and 
 (c) to which children under the age of 5 are to be admitted. 
 
 (2) There are to be on the premises facilities for baby changing which are to be accessible 

to persons of either gender. 
 

Display or promotion of the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises 
  
13 (1)  Subject to sub-paragraph (3), alcohol which is for sale only for consumption off the 

premises may be displayed only in one or both of the following: 
 
 (a) a single area of the premises agreed between the Licensing Board and the holder  

of the licence; or 
 (b) a single area of the premises which is inaccessible to the public. 

 
 (1A) Sub-paragraphs (1B) to (1D) apply where the premises, in so far as they are used for 

the sale of alcohol, are so used only or primarily for the sale of alcohol for consumption 
off the premises. 

 
 (1B) Any drinks promotion on the premises may take place only in any one or more of the 

following: 
 
 (a) an area referred to in sub-paragraph (1)(a) and (b), 
 (b) a room on the premises which is used for offering the tasting of any alcohol sold 

on the premises (for consumption off the premises) and the resulting tasting and 
is separate from those areas. 

 

Page 75



 

                              28 

 (1C) A drinks promotion in connection with the premises may not take place in the vicinity 
of the premises. 

 
 (1D) For the purposes of sub-paragraph (1C), the "vicinity" means the area extending 200 

metres from the boundary of the premises (as shown on the layout plan). 
 
 (2) In an area agreed in terms of sub-paragraph (1)(a), a product other than alcohol may 

be displayed only if it is: 
 
 (a) a non-alcoholic drink;  
 (b) packaged with, and may be purchased only along with, alcohol; 
 (c) a branded non-alcoholic product, or 
 (d) a newspaper, magazine or other publication. 
 
 (2A) Sub-paragraph (2) is without prejudice to sub-paragraph (1B). 
 
 
 
 (3) This paragraph does not apply in respect of premises: 
 
 (a) whose main function is to provide a visitor attraction, and 
 (b) where: 

 (i) the premises form part of a larger site which is used principally for the 
production of alcoholic drinks, or 

 (ii) the visitor attraction is used principally to provide information about and 
promote the history and attributes of a particular alcoholic drink or a particular 
category of alcoholic drink. 

 
 (4) In this paragraph: 

 
 "branded non-alcoholic product" means a product which does not consist of or contain 

alcohol and which: 

 (a) bears a name or image of;  or 
 (b)  is an image of, an alcoholic product (namely, a product consisting of or containing 

alcohol). 
 
 "drinks promotion" means any activity which promotes, or seeks to promote, the buying 

of any alcohol sold on the premises for consumption off the premises but does not 
include the display of any product which is: 

 (a) a branded non-alcoholic product for sale on the premises; or 
 (b) a newspaper. magazine or other publication: 

 (i)  for sale on the premises;  or 
 (ii) if not for sale on the premises, which does not relate only or primarily to 

alcohol. 

Page 76



 

                              29 

APPENDIX 5 
 

The following are also mandatory conditions if the premises will, on any occasion, be open (to the 
public – residents of a hotel are excluded from) after 1.00am.  Condition 1 is always applied in such 
circumstances.  Conditions 2 to 6 apply depending on certain other detailed criteria. 
 
1. A person trained to the satisfaction of the Licensing Board in administering first aid must be 

present on the premises from 1.00am (on any day when the premises are open at that time) 
until whichever is the earlier of: 

 (a) the time at which the premises next close; and 
 (b) 5.00am. 
 
2. A designated person who is the holder of a personal licence must be present on the premises 

from 1.00am (on any day when the premises are open at that time) until whichever is the earlier 
of: 

 (a) the time at which the premises next close; and 
 (b) 5.00am or such other time as the Licensing Board may specify. 
 
3. There must be written policies in existence concerning: 

 (a) the evacuation of the premises; and 
 (b) the prevention of the misuse of drugs on the premises. 
 
4. A CCTV system must be installed on the premises to the satisfaction of the appropriate chief 

constable and must be kept in good working order. 
 
5. There must be persons responsible for checking on the safety and wellbeing of persons using 

any toilet facilities on the premises. 
 
6. A person who holds a licence granted under section 8 of the Private Security Industry Act 2001 

must be positioned at every entrance to the premises from 1.00am (on any day when the 
premises are open at that time) until whichever is the earlier of: 

 (a) the time at which the premises next close; and 
 (b) 5.00am or such other time as the Licensing Board may specify. 

 

Page 77



 

                              30 

APPENDIX 6 
 

SCOTTISH BORDERS LICENSING BOARD 
 

Occasional Licences - Mandatory Conditions 
(Applicable from 1 May 2018) 

Interpretation 

1 In this schedule, "the premises" means, in relation to any occasional licence, the premises 
specified in the licence. 

 
Compliance with Licence 

2 (1) Alcohol may be sold on the premises only in accordance with the terms of the licence. 

      (2) Nothing in sub-paragraph (1) is to be read as preventing or restricting the doing of 
anything referred to in section 63(2). 

 
3 Any other activity to be carried on in the premises may be carried on only in accordance with 

the description of the activity contained in the licence. 
 
Authorisation of Sales of Alcohol 

4 (1) The condition specified in sub-paragraph (2) applies only to an occasional licence issued 
to the holder of a premises licence or personal licence. 

 (2) Every sale of alcohol made on the premises to which the licence relates must be 
authorised (whether generally or specifically) by the holder of a personal licence. 

 
Voluntary Organisations 

5 (1) The condition specified in sub-paragraph (2) applies only to an occasional licence issued 
to a representative of a voluntary organisation. 

         (2) Alcohol may be sold on the premises only at an event taking place on the premises in 
connection with the voluntary organisation's activities.                                

 
Minimum price of packages containing more than one alcoholic product 

5(A) (1) Alcohol must not be sold on the premises at a price below its minimum price. 

 (2) Where alcohol is supplied together with other products or services for a single price, sub-
paragraph (1) applies as if the alcohol were supplied on its own for that price. 

 (3) The minimum price of alcohol is to be calculated according to the following formula: 

    MPU x S x V x 100 

   where: 

  MPU is the minimum price per unit 
  S is the strength of the alcohol; and 
  V is the volume of the alcohol in litres  

(4) The Scottish Ministers have specified by order that the minimum price per unit is 50 
pence. 

(5) For the purposes of sub-paragraph (3), where: 

 (a)  the alcohol is contained in a bottle or other container; and 
 (b)  the bottle or other container is marked or labelled in accordance with  the Food 

Information (Scotland) Regulations 2014(a) 

 the strength is taken to be the alcoholic strength by volume as indicated by the mark or label. 

Page 78



 

                              31 

5B (1)  A package containing two or more alcoholic products (whether of the same or different 
kinds) may only be sold on the premises at a price equal to or greater than the sum of 
the prices at which each alcoholic product is for sale. 

 (2) Sub-paragraph (1) applies: 

   (a)   only where each of the alcoholic products is for sale on the premises separately, 
and 

   (b)   regardless of whether or not the package also contains any item which is not an 
alcoholic product. 

 (3) In this paragraph, "alcoholic product" means a product containing alcohol and includes 
the container in which alcohol is for sale. 

 
Pricing of Alcohol 

6 Where the price at which any alcohol sold on the premises for consumption on the premises 
is varied: 

 (a) the variation (referred to in this paragraph as "the earlier price variation") may be brought 
into effect only at the beginning of a period of licensed hours; and  

 (b) no further variation of the price at which that or any other alcohol is sold on the premises 
for consumption on the premises may be brought into effect before the expiry of the period 
of 72 hours beginning with the coming into effect of the earlier price variation. 

 
6A Where the price at which any alcohol sold on the premises for consumption off the premises 

is varied: 

         (a) the variation (referred to in this paragraph as "the earlier price variation") may be brought 
into effect only at the beginning of a period of licensed hours; and 

 (b) no further variation in the price at which that alcohol is sold on the premises may be 
brought into effect before the expiry of 72 hours beginning with the coming into effect of 
the earlier price variation. 

 
Irresponsible Drinks Promotions 

7 (1) An irresponsible drinks promotion must not be carried on in or in connection with the 
premises. 

 
 (2) Subject to sub-paragraph (3), a drinks promotion is irresponsible if it: 

   (a)  relates specifically to an alcoholic drink likely to appeal largely to persons under the 
age of 18; 

   (b)  involves the supply of an alcoholic drink free of charge or at a reduced price on the 
purchase of one or more drinks (whether or not alcoholic drinks); 

   (c)  involves the supply free of charge or at a reduced price of one or more extra 
measures of an alcoholic drink on the purchase of one or more measures of the 
drink; 

   (d)  involves the supply of unlimited amounts of alcohol for a fixed charge (including any 
charge for entry to the premises); 

   (e)  encourages, or seeks to encourage, a person to buy or consume a larger measure 
of alcohol than the person had otherwise intended to buy or consume; 

   (f)  is based on the strength of any alcohol; 
   (g)  rewards or encourages, or seeks to reward or encourage, drinking alcohol quickly; 

or  
   (h)  offers alcohol as a reward or prize, unless the alcohol is in a sealed container and 

consumed off the premises. 
 (3) Paragraphs (c) to (e) of sub-paragraph (2) apply only to a drinks promotion carried on in 

relation to alcohol sold for consumption on the premises. 
 
 (4) The Scottish Ministers may by regulations modify sub-paragraph (2) or (3) so as to: 

   (a) add further descriptions of drinks promotions; 

Page 79



 

                              32 

   (b) modify any of the descriptions of drinks promotions for the time being listed in it; or  
   (c) extend or restrict the application of any of those descriptions of drinks promotions. 
 
 (5) In this paragraph, "drinks promotion" means, in relation to any premises, any activity 

which promotes, or seeks to promote, the buying or consumption of any alcohol on the 
premises. 

 
Provision of Non-Alcoholic Drinks 

8 (1) The conditions specified in this paragraph apply only to the extent that the occasional 
licence authorises the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises. 

 (2) Tap water fit for drinking must be provided free of charge on request. 

 (3) Other non-alcoholic drinks must be available for purchase at a reasonable price. 
 
Age verification policy 

9 (1) There must be an age verification policy in relation to the sale of alcohol on the premises. 

 (2) An "age verification policy" is a policy that steps are to be taken to establish the age of a 
person attempting to buy alcohol on the premises ("the customer") if it appears to the 
person selling the alcohol that the customer may be less than 25 years of age (or such 
older age as may be specified in the policy). 

  (3) The condition specified in this paragraph does not apply in relation to any sale of alcohol 
which takes place on the premises merely by virtue of being treated, by section 139, as 
taking place on the premises. 

Additional Conditions: 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 80



 

                              33 

APPENDIX 7 
 
 

EXAMPLE ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS 
 
 

1. The music must be turned off at midnight.  
 

2. A noise steward to patrol the outside of the marquee every 30 minutes - must be someone 
not on duty inside the marquee at any time during the evening.  

 
3. The sound system limiter to be set to a reasonable level and no bypass facility permitted. 

 
4. That during the whole period of the event or occasion, an adequate number of stewards are 

employed at all entry and exit points to facilitate the safety of patrons and the public. 
 

5. That there is a clearly identifiable person in charge whether it is the licence holder or not. 
 

6. That all approaches to the venue are at all times kept clear of all obstructions including 
vehicles to ensure Emergency vehicle access if required. 

 
7. At the end of the evening, guests should be reminded that they should leave the marquee in 

a quiet, orderly manner. 
 

8. To continue to carry out the sound reduction measures agreed with Environmental Health. 
 

9. All reasonable steps should be taken to ensure that customers using any areas outside the 
premises to smoke do not cause a nuisance to residents in the vicinity of the premises by 
creating noise, litter etc. 

 
10. Drinks supplied in any public beer tent or bar to be dispensed in plastic containers. 

 
11. Any drinks carried out, from any hospitality tent, to be in a plastic container. 

 
12. The applicant named on the licence should be present and available throughout the event. 

 
13. There should be a clearly identified person in charge at each bar/ point of sale. 

 
14. Policy Statements should be in place showing how the Five Licensing Objectives contained 

within the Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005 are to be achieved. 
 

15. Challenge 25 to be strictly enforced with staff trained and signage displayed accordingly. 
 

16. Adequate and appropriate stewarding should be in place at all licensed areas. 
 

17. A system should be in place to identify and distinguish between those attending the event 
who are under or over 18 years of age. 

 
18. Any staff employed in the sale of supply of alcohol should be trained to the same level as the 

mandatory staff training required when employed in licensed premises and a record of that 
training should be available for inspection. 

 
 

Page 81



 

                              34 

APPENDIX 8 
 
 
 

WHAT IS A CLUB 
 
Clubs are defined in The Licensing (Clubs) (Scotland) Regulations 2007, as follows: 
 
They must not be conducted for the purpose of making a profit 
 
They must have a written Constitution and Rules that provide for the following: 

(i) The business of the club is to be under the management of a committee or other governing 
body elected by the members; 

(ii) No person under 18 is to be admitted as a member of the club (unless the club is devoted 
primarily to some sporting purpose or is a students union); 

(iii) No member of the committee or employee is to have a personal interest in the sale of alcohol 
on the club premises or in the profits from the sale of alcohol; 

(iv) Except when an occasional licence is in force, alcohol can only be supplied to members, their 
guests or members of other qualifying clubs; 

(v) Other than when an occasional licence is in force, where a guest is supplied with alcohol an 
entry must be made in a book recording the name of the guest, the name of the member 
accompanying him or her and the date; 

(vi) Correct accounts and books are to be kept showing the financial affairs of the club; 
(vii) The club must have at least 25 members to be properly constituted; and 
(viii) No person is to be allowed honorary or temporary membership of the club or to be relieved of 

the payment of the regular entrance fee or subscription, except:  

 (a) to allow temporary participation in the activity which is the prime purpose of the club; and 
 (b) in accordance with specific provisions set out in the club rules. 
 
A club MUST HAVE a proper Constitution to comply with the regulations. The Board will therefore 
expect clubs to provide a copy of their Constitution and rules along with their Premises Licence 
application.    
 
 
WHAT ARE THE EXEMPTIONS FOR CLUBS UNDER THE 2005 ACT 
 
Section 125 of the Act provides for some exemptions for clubs who fall within the description above. 
 
Clubs are exempted from: 
 
The assessments of overprovision (Section 7); 
 
The ground for refusal of Premises Licence or Premises Licence Variation application relating to 
overprovision (Section 23(5)(e) and 30(5)(d)); 
 
The requirement for the Operating Plan to contain information about the Premises Manager (Section 
20(4)(g)); 
 
The requirement for the name and address of the Premises Manager to be specified in the Premises 
Licence (Section 26(2)(a)(ii)); 
 
The requirement for there to be a Premises Manager for licensed premises (Schedule 3 para 4); 
 
The requirement for the sale of alcohol under the Premises Licence to be authorised by a Personal 
Licenceholder (Schedule 3, para 5); and  
 

Page 82



 

                              35 

The requirement for sales of alcohol under certain Occasional Licences to be authorised by a 
Personal Licenceholder. (Schedule 4, para. 4). 
 
These exemptions mean that clubs will not generally need a Personal Licenceholder or a Premises 
Manager.  The exception is where they were to be open after 1 a.m. and satisfy certain other 
requirements (beyond the scope of this guidance) in which case they may become subject to certain 
mandatory conditions that include the presence of a Personal Licenceholder. 
 
 
WHAT ARE THE TRAINING REQUIREMENTS 
 
The Premises Licence Mandatory Conditions contained in Schedule 3 to the Act provide, at Para 6, 
for the training of staff selling or serving alcohol.  There is no exemption for clubs from this provision 
and clubs cannot use untrained staff. (A copy of the Mandatory Conditions is attached as Appendix 
4).   
 
Where a person undertakes the role of selling or serving alcohol then that person must be trained to 
the standard prescribed in the Licensing (Training of Staff)(Scotland) Regulations 2007 (SSI 95).  
That standard is at least 2 hours of relevant training from a person who holds a Personal Licence or 
who is accredited by the Scottish Qualifications Agency (www.sqa.org.uk). 
 
Club representatives have undergone recognised training in the past.  Some clubs may choose to 
have someone undergo the necessary training and to apply for a Personal Licence, even though 
there is no requirement for this, the Personal Licenceholder could then carry out training for any 
other staff or members internally.  Each club must make its own decision on this.  As a matter of 
good practice Scottish Borders Licensing Boards strongly recommend that clubs do have a Personal 
Licenceholder on their staff or indeed a Committee Member or Official.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 83

http://www.sqa.org.uk/


 

                              36 

APPENDIX 9 
 
 

FIRE SAFETY INFORMATION FOR LICENCE APPLICANTS 
 
 
Part of any licence application involves consultation with the Fire and Rescue Service in order to 
ensure that the Fire (Scotland) Act 2005 as amended and the Fire Safety (Scotland) Regulations 
2006 are being complied with. The responsibility for complying with these fire safety laws lies with the 
employer (and/or any other person who may have control of the premises e.g. 
owner/licensee/tenant/manager; this person is designated as the “duty holder”) and they MUST 
ensure that a fire safety risk assessment is carried out by a competent person and the 
outcomes recorded. 
 
More detailed guidance on the Fire (Scotland) Act 2005 as amended, the Fire Safety (Scotland) 
Regulations 2006 and fire safety risk assessment is available, under ‘firelaw’, on the Scottish 
Government website; www.scotland.gov.uk 
 
Also, detailed information regarding the benchmark standards for licensed premises can be found 
on the above website. These are contained within the sector specific guides “Practical Fire Safety 
Guidance for Places of Entertainment and Assembly” (PFSGPEA) (for ON sales) and “Practical Fire 
Safety Guidance for Offices, Shops and Similar Premises” (PFSGOSSP) (for OFF sales). These 
sector specific guides can be downloaded free of charge from the above website. 
 
In relation to your licence application, plans are NOT to be submitted to the Fire and Rescue 
Service. As part of the process to issue a licence the Fire and Rescue Service MAY require 
to visit and audit the fire safety arrangements in the premises. This may not be required in 
every instance.  

 
Free advice is available from Scottish Fire and Rescue Service about issues relating to general fire 
safety, but it must be remembered that the duty holder is responsible for carrying out the fire safety 
risk assessment for their premises and identifying the fire safety measures necessary as a result of 
the fire safety risk assessment outcomes.  
 
Scottish Fire and Rescue Service can be contacted using any of the following methods; 
 
Phone:   01896 758326 
 
Email:   enquiries@firescotland.gov.uk  
 
Postal address:  Scottish Fire and Rescue Service, 
                                    Community Safety (Prevention and Protection), 
   143 Croft Street 
   Galashiels 
   TD1 3BS 
 
Website:   www.firescotland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 84

http://www.scotland.gov.uk/
mailto:enquiries@firescotland.gov.uk
http://www.firescotland.gov.uk/


 

                              37 

BENCHMARK FIRE SAFETY STANDARDS FOR OFF/ON SALES 
 

a) Emergency/Escape Lighting System(s) should comply with British Standard 5266: Parts 
1, 7 and 8, current edition (BS EN 1838).  
(Category – non-maintained 60 for off licence, maintained 180 for all other licence types). 
*See sector specific guides: Technical Annexe 13.10 

 
b) Signs and Notices should comply with the Health and Safety (Safety Signs and Signals) 

Regulations 1996 and/or British Standard 5499: Parts 1, 4 and 5, current edition. 
*See sector specific guides: Technical Annexe 13.11 
 

c) Fire Warning/Automatic Fire Detection System(s) should comply with BS 5839: Part 1, 
current edition (category M, L1, L2, L3, L4 or L5) *if applicable 
*See sector specific guides: Technical Annexe 13.12 

 
d) Firefighting Equipment should comply with British Standard EN3, British Standard 7863 

(current edition), British Standard 5306 Part 3, current edition and British Standard 5306 
Part 8, current edition. 
*See sector specific guides: Technical Annexe 13.13 

 
e) Furniture and Textiles should conform to the relevant guidance/standard(s). 

*See PFSGPEA: Technical Annexe 13.15 
 

f) Tents, Marquees, Air Supported and Pneumatic Structures should conform to the 
relevant guidance/standard(s). 
*See PFSGPEA: Technical Annexe 13.16 
 

g) Auditoria, Stages, Fixed Seating and Gangways should conform to the relevant 
guidance/standard(s). 
*See PFSGPEA: Technical Annexe 13.18 
 

h) Open Air Events should conform to the relevant guidance/standard(s). 
*See PFSGPEA: Technical Annexe 13.19 

 
i) Fire safety policy, emergency fire action plans, fire safety information, training, fire 

drills, maintenance of fire safety measures, recording information/keeping records 
should all conform to the relevant guidance/standard(s). 
*See sector specific guides: Chapter 5 Managing Fire Safety 

 
j) Any other fire related standard which is relevant to your premises (e.g. fire doors, dry 

risers, fire service access, water supplies etc) 
*See sector specific guides and relevant Technical Annexe(s) 
 

Any staff training needs that are identified from the fire safety risk assessment process are also the 
responsibility of the duty holder to address. 
 
The above recommendations should not be regarded as the only option for achieving the 
benchmark standards. Other fire safety risk assessment methods or fire safety measures 
which achieve the same end should be considered.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft Response to Licensing Board Policy Statement Consultation 

The Local Licensing Forum welcomes the opportunity to comment on the Licensing 

Board Policy Statement Consultation.  Forum members met on the 15th August and 

22nd August to discuss and propose the following:  

• It would be helpful for future reviews/consultations that the Board highlight 

areas that have been updated within the new Policy Statement.  

 

• Section 1.6 Number of licensed premises.  Suggest using full year data 

e.g. 456 in 2021-22 compared with 454 in 2017/18.  Scottish Liquor Licensing 

Statistics - gov.scot (www.gov.scot).   

 

• Section 2: Licensing Objectives.  The Policy Statement doesn’t say HOW 

the Board will promote the licensing objectives and instead only suggests 

examples of what should be considered by licensees.  By including how the 

Board will promote the Licensing Objective makes it clear how they also are 

carrying out their role and allows measures for the Board to report on within 

their Annual Functions Report.  A suggested format for this could be:  

Licensing 

Objective 

Licensing Board Licensee  

Preventing 

Crime and 

Disorder 

• Applying appropriate 

conditions to licences to 

mitigate the risk of potential 

crime or disorder.  

• Endorsing initiatives 

designed to prevent crime 

and disorder.  

• Conducting reviews where 

licensees fail to implement 

control measures on the 

basis that they are not fit 

and proper persons to 

operate licensed premises. 

• Effective and responsible 

management of premises 

including written 

procedures for managing 

incidents. 

• Training and supervision 

of staff on relevant issues, 

policies and procedures 

including conflict 

management training. 

• Displaying local 

transport 

information to 

facilitate safe 

journeys 

Page 87

https://www.gov.scot/publications/scottish-liquor-licensing-statistics/
https://www.gov.scot/publications/scottish-liquor-licensing-statistics/


 

There are a range of additional measures to promote the objectives suggested here 

for both the Licensing Board and Licensees and would suggest that this list is 

reviewed to ensure all relevant items covered 

In addition, the forum recommends amending this section to strengthen expectations 

around measures for underage drinking, drunkenness on premises, training and 

supervision for staff. At present the current Licensing Policy provides examples of 

what ‘should be considered’ rather than stating what is expected.  This could be 

separated into essential and desirable.  These areas were also identified by the 

community when responding to the Community Insights Into Alcohol Impact and 

Licensing in Scottish Borders Survey: July 23 (referred to as Community Survey 

onwards) as an area to improve. 

• Section 3 Board Business:  3.1 states the Board Meetings will be held in 

Scottish Borders Council HQ.  It would be helpful to amend this to note the 

opportunity for people to attend on MS Teams and a direct link to the 

webpage for meetings rather than SBC homepage.      

 

• Section 4 Overprovision:  

o 4.4 The Policy states ‘The Scottish Borders Licensing Board will consider 

overprovision when relevant applications come before it’ – it may be 

helpful to further explain that this is only applies to future premises 

licences. It is not possible under current legislation to retrospectively 

revoke premises licences that have been granted on the grounds of 

overprovision. However, the law enables licensing boards to prevent 

further expansion in the supply of alcohol in areas that are considered 

well-provided for and at risk of becoming overprovided.  This means the 

Licensing Board may refuse applications for new premises licences or 

extensions in capacity in areas where it judges that the granting of an 

additional licence or extended capacity could result in overprovision of 

licensed premises.  

 

• 4.4 The Board will also take into account the overall availability in 

the Borders.  The Forum welcomes this statement to consider the total 

Page 88

https://www.alcohol-focus-scotland.org.uk/media/440019/resource-2-%E2%80%93-measures-to-promote-the-licensing-objectives.pdf


impact of multiple alcohol outlets  on a community. Albeit occasional 

licenses do not feature as part of the Overprovision Assessment this 

has impact on increased availability of alcohol particularly around 

summer festivals.  Decisions should not be made based on 

precedence or economic benefit alone.  

 

The updated Licensing Board guidance provides clarity around approaches to 

overprovision assessments and interpreting the causal link. Finding the exact 

threshold between provision and overprovision cannot be achieved through a 

straightforward numerical formula. Instead, it requires the exercise of reason and 

judgment, keeping the community's best interests in mind.  

Health inequalities is an important consideration in relation to over provision.  

The impact of alcohol harm is disproportionately higher among those facing the 

greatest deprivation.  In Scottish Borders the most deprived areas have 52% more 

hospital admissions that the overall average. 

Alcohol related hospital admissions would be 36% lower if the levels of the least 

deprived area were experienced across the whole population. 

Scottish Borders: 

 

Page 89

https://www.gov.scot/publications/licensing-scotland-act-2005-section-142-guidance-licensing-boards/pages/6/


Further data within the Alcohol Profile 2022-23 for Scottish Borders should help 

inform local decision making and policy.  The Protecting and improving public health 

licensing objective encourages licensing boards to consider the cumulative effect of 

licensed premises on alcohol-related harm within their area, rather than the actions 

of any individual premises.  

 

• Section 6: Notification of Premises Licence Application – Where it 

includes the Council website Link it would be useful to have the direct link to 

the page that applications of Premises Licences are advertised rather than 

public having to navigate through the Council website from home page to find 

applications.  

 

• Section 6.4 Premises – Information relating to Children & Young People  

There are further measures that licensees (and Licensing Board) and suggest 

here.   

 

• 6.1.4 Conditions Further examples of additional conditions are here for the 

Board to review and consider to add to the Licensing Policy Statement. 

 

• 6.3 Adult Entertainment Suggest the wording of this is made clearer to reflect 

that whilst current licensed premises who are offering adult entertainment is 

reduced to 3 such events, the Full Council agreed that there would be nil Sexual 

Entertainment Venues in Scottish Borders.  

 

• Section 7.3  Licensed Hours and Extended Hours   As far as on sale hours 

are concerned, the Board will not normally grant applications for more than 14 

hours in any 24 hour period.   

 

Responses from the recent Community Survey highlighted the negative impact 

of local town summer festivals on the community through alcohol.  The Policy 

states that ‘the Board does not consider that all events connected with historic 

common ridings and summer festivals should automatically be seen as 

justification for an occasional licence or to extend licensed hours. Applicants 

Page 90

https://www.alcohol-focus-scotland.org.uk/media/440019/resource-2-%E2%80%93-measures-to-promote-the-licensing-objectives.pdf
https://www.alcohol-focus-scotland.org.uk/media/440020/resource-3-%E2%80%93-examples-of-conditions-to-promote-the-objectives.pdf


will require to specify how their application is connected to the local common 

riding or festival event and the Board will consider each on its individual merits 

in relation to the licensing objectives’.   

The policy would benefit detailing the additional measures in the Licensing 

Policy Statement open to the Licensing Board to support this statement.  

 

• Section 8: Home Deliveries/Remote Sales.  Following the increased trend of 

online alcohol shopping it is recommended that the Licensing Board enhance 

the policy around home deliveries/remote sales to minimise harm to children 

and young people including: 

o make clear that delivery staff must be trained to the same level as 

those on licensed premises. 

o that challenge 25 checks must be completed. 

o that licensees using courier services must ensure they are compliant 

with the Licensing Board requirements.   

This is an area that has also been identified as a concern by the Community  

Survey in July 23.  

• Section 12 Occasional Licenses: the Board may require to see written 

policies evidencing the measures in place to meet the Protecting Children and 

Young Persons from Harm objective.  The Forum would suggest this is 

strengthened to ‘will require’ to see written policies and again suggest 

reviewing the measures here to offer examples for applicants.  

 

Finally the Community Survey previously circulated to the Licensing Board 

also provided commentary around perceived need for increased enforcement 

through regular visits to licensed premises to monitor compliance with 

Licensing Legislation by Licensing Standards Officers.   

 

Whilst the survey mentioned the perceived need for regular enforcement the 

Forum is fully aware of the positive work that Licensing Standards Officers 

and Police Scotland undertakes and accepts that  inspection of training 

records and new initiatives or training is promoted when available.  

Page 91

https://www.alcohol-focus-scotland.org.uk/media/440019/resource-2-%E2%80%93-measures-to-promote-the-licensing-objectives.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Borders Alcohol & Drugs Partnership (ADP) 

Response to Licensing Board Policy Statement Consultation: August 23 

Please find below the response from the ADP to the above consultation.   

Question 1:  

Do you think the suggested control measures are sufficient? No 

The Policy Statement doesn’t say how the Licensing Board will promote the licensing 

objectives and instead only suggests examples of control measures for licensees.   

Including how the Licensing Board will promote the Licensing Objective would allow 

transparency and accountability to the local community and key stakeholders.  This 

could also be reported on within the Licensing Board Annual Function Report.  A 

suggested format for this could be:  

Licensing Objective Licensing Board Actions Licensee Actions 

Preventing Crime and 

Disorder 

• Applying appropriate 

conditions to licences to 

mitigate the risk of potential 

crime or disorder.  

• Endorsing initiatives 

designed to prevent crime 

and disorder.  

• Conducting reviews where 

licensees fail to implement 

control measures on the 

basis that they are not fit 

and proper persons to 

operate licensed premises. 

• Effective and 

responsible 

management of 

premises including 

written procedures for 

managing incidents. 

• Training and 

supervision of staff on 

relevant issues, 

policies and 

procedures including 

conflict management 

training. 

 

 

There are a range of suggested measures to support Licensing Boards promote the 

objectives suggested here for both the Licensing Board and Licensees and would 

suggest that this list is reviewed to ensure all relevant items included.   

Page 93

https://www.alcohol-focus-scotland.org.uk/media/440019/resource-2-%E2%80%93-measures-to-promote-the-licensing-objectives.pdf


2 
 

The current Policy states that with regards to Occasional Licenses the Board may 

require to see written policies evidencing the measures in place to meet the 

Protecting Children and Young Persons from Harm objective.  The ADP is aware of 

the positive work and scrutiny that Police Scotland and Licensing Standards Officers 

undertake on behalf of the Licensing Board with regard to Occasional Licenses, 

however, would suggest the wording in the policy is strengthened to will require to 

see written policies.  The use of the measures as described above and available 

here will be helpful for applicants. In particular: 

• Ensuring there are clear reasons for children and young people to be present 

in licensed premises. 

• Ensuring facilities are appropriate to the areas of the premises to which 

children and young persons are to be afforded access.  

• Ensuring that staff are fully aware of any restrictions to children and young 

persons’ access and supervision requirements. 

• Restricting access for children and young persons to appropriate hours and 

parts of the premises. 

• Ensuring vigilance against underage drinking and proxy purchasing.  

• Strictly enforcing Challenge 25, and requiring accredited proof of age cards 

with photographs, or passports.  

• Using till prompts so that all till users are prompted to ask for ID when an age 

restricted product is scanned.  

• Training staff to recognise fake ID. 

• Conducting regular in-house test purchasing exercises and developing a staff 

policy of steps to be taken in the event of underage patrons or adults 

attempting to purchase alcohol on their behalf. 

• Requiring children to be accompanied by an adult.  

• Ensuring no person under the age of 18 is permitted to attend an event 

involving adult entertainment. 

• Taking extra measures to secure the safety of children such as Disclosure 

Certificates for staff working within the premises or employed as stewards. 

• Not displaying alcohol alongside confectionery or other goods likely to be of 

interest to children. 

Page 94

https://www.alcohol-focus-scotland.org.uk/media/440019/resource-2-%E2%80%93-measures-to-promote-the-licensing-objectives.pdf


3 
 

In addition, the ADP would recommend strengthening the wording from where the 

current Licensing Policy provides examples of what ‘should be considered’  to 

explicitly state what is expected.  Measures could also be separated into essential 

and desirable.   

Further guidance and good practice from other areas in relation to the promotion of 

Licensing Objectives are included within the recently updated Licensing (Scotland) 

Act 2005 guidance.  

Question 2 - Period of Licensed Hours 

The current Policy states that the Board will not normally grant applications for more 

than 14 hours in any 24 hour period where alcohol consumption is the principal 

activity. 

 

This means that unless there is significant entertainment included, on sale hours 

should not extend beyond midnight Sunday to Wednesday and 1.00am Thursday to 

Saturday and not start earlier than 11.00am each day. 

 

Off sale hours are not affected because the legislation does not permit sales before 

10.00am or after 10.00pm. 

 

Do you feel this should continue in the new Policy? 

During summer festivals and common riding events, there is a significant increase in 

the availability of alcohol with licenses allowing the sale of alcohol from 6am on a 

Thursday morning and 9am on a Friday through to 1am.  This increases availability 

from 14 hours to approximately 19 hours. 

 

The Policy states that ‘the Board does not consider that all events connected with 

historic common ridings and summer festivals should automatically be seen as 

justification for an occasional licence or to extend licensed hours. Applicants will 

require to specify how their application is connected to the local common riding or 

festival event and the Board will consider each on its individual merits in relation to the 

licensing objectives’.   

Page 95

https://www.gov.scot/publications/licensing-scotland-act-2005-section-142-guidance-licensing-boards/pages/3/
https://www.gov.scot/publications/licensing-scotland-act-2005-section-142-guidance-licensing-boards/pages/3/


4 
 

It is not clear that the Licensing Board can demonstrate what additional measures 

have been put in place to support this statement and reduce impact on the community. 

The Policy would benefit from this being included.   

The recent Community Insights into Alcohol and Licensing Survey carried out by the 

Local Licensing Forum identified concerns from the local community in relation to such  

events which should be focused on celebrating the historic events and not alcohol 

consumption.  

Question 3 Final thoughts:  

Overprovision and Health Inequalities:  

The updated Licensing Board guidance provides clarity around approaches to 

overprovision assessments and interpreting the causal link. Finding the exact 

threshold between provision and overprovision cannot be achieved through a 

straightforward numerical formula. Instead, it requires the exercise of reason and 

judgment, keeping the community's best interests in mind.  

Health inequalities is an important consideration in relation to overprovision.  

The impact of alcohol harm is disproportionately higher among those facing the 

greatest deprivation.  In the Scottish Borders the most deprived areas have 52% 

more alcohol related hospital admissions than the overall Borders average. 

Alcohol related hospital admissions would be 36% lower if the levels of the least 

deprived area were experienced across the whole population1. 

Scottish Borders: 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1 ScotPHO profiles (shinyapps.io) 
 

Page 96

https://www.gov.scot/publications/licensing-scotland-act-2005-section-142-guidance-licensing-boards/pages/6/
https://scotland.shinyapps.io/ScotPHO_profiles_tool/


5 
 

Further data within the Alcohol Profile 2022-23 for Scottish Borders should help 

inform local decision making and policy.   

Whilst there was a reduction in the number of Occasional Licence applications 

granted during the pandemic, this is noted at high levels (1455 licenses between Aug 

22 – Aug 23 compared with 1243 in the same period in 2017-18).  Although 

occasional licenses are not included within the Overprovision Statement, the 

Protecting and Improving Public Health licensing objective encourages licensing 

boards to consider the cumulative effect of licensed premises on alcohol-related 

harm within their area, rather than the actions of any individual premises. 

It should be noted that data in relation to  the number, type and capacity of premises 

is not available locally to the ADP and therefore is difficult to make assessment on 

overprovision.  

Home Deliveries/Remote Sales.  Following the increasing trend of online alcohol 

shopping it is recommended that the Licensing Board enhance the policy around home 

deliveries/remote sales to minimise harm to children and young people including: 

• Make clear that delivery staff must be trained to the same level as those 

working in licensed premises. 

• Challenge 25 checks must be completed. 

• Licensees using courier services must ensure they are compliant with the 

Licensing Board requirements.   

This is an area that has also been identified as a concern by the Community Insights 

into Alcohol and Licensing Survey in July 23.  

Format for future consultation: It would be helpful to see the changes highlighted 

from previous Policy Statement in proposed new Statement. 

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



Response ID ANON-HRYT-4RDH-S

Submitted to SBC Licensing Policy Statement 2023-2028
Submitted on 2023-08-13 11:21:16

Introduction

How are you responding to the SBC Licensing Policy Statement 2023-28 consultation?

Organisation

If Trade or Organisation, please detail.:
Jethart Callant's Festival

Licensing Objectives

Do you think the suggested control measures are sufficient?

Yes

Please explain your response.:

Covers all bases

Period of Licensed Hours

Do you feel this should continue in the new Policy?

No

Please explain your response.:

Flexibility required

Final Thoughts

Have you any other comments or suggestions regarding matters which you feel should or should not be included in the Board’s new
Statement of Licensing Policy?

final comments:

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minute
	5 Licences dealt with under Delegated Powers
	Sheet 1

	6a Section 20: Application for Grant / Provisional Grant of Premises Licence.
	Item No. 6(a) - Bella Sicily, 12 Canongate, Jedburgh - Proposed Op. Plan - Provisional
	Item 6(a) - Bella Sicily, 12 Canongate, Jedburgh - Layout Plan - Provisional
	Sheets and Views
	Existing and Proposed



	6b Section 20:  Application for Grant / Provisional Grant of Premises Licence.
	Item No. 6(b) - Scrummy and Scrumpy, 29 High Street, Jedburgh - Application - Provisional
	Item No. 6(b) - Scrummy and Scrumpy, 29 High Street, Jedburgh - Layout Plan - Provisional

	7 Festive Season Extended Hours Policy
	8 Draft Licensing Board Policy Statement 2023 to 2028 - Update
	Item No. 8(b) - Draft Policy Statement 2023-2028
	Item No. 8(c) - Licensing Forum Response to Consultation
	Item No. 8(d) - ADP Response to Consultation
	Item No. 8(e) - Jethart Callants Festival Response to Consultation
	Response ID ANON-HRYT-4RDH-S
	Introduction
	How are you responding to the SBC Licensing Policy Statement 2023-28 consultation?  

	Licensing Objectives
	Do you think the suggested control measures are sufficient? 

	Period of Licensed Hours
	Do you feel this should continue in the new Policy? 

	Final Thoughts
	Have you any other comments or suggestions regarding matters which you feel should or should not be included in the Board’s new Statement of Licensing Policy?  





